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» Treasurer’s Report ]t &

Report of the Treasurer to the Council on the
Group’s Financial Statements for the Financial Year
from 1 July 2006 to 30 June 2007

Overview

Despite the fact that the Block Grants from the University
Grants Committee (“UGC”) had been reduced by approximately
$27 million or 5.8% as compared to the level in 2005/06, the
Institute, through prudent financial management, managed to
end the year with an unspent balance in Block Grants of $25.7
million. The Institute’s General and Development Reserve Fund
(“Reserve”) has now reached $641 million, which will be able
to provide the financial support for the repositioning and the re-
titling of the Institute, as well as other new developments in
the future.

Despite the uncertainties and increased workload brought on by
rumours of merger, the Commission of Inquiry, and significant
senior personnel changes, all staff members worked diligently
throughout and had kept interruptions to the minimum. To this
end, we are very grateful for the extraordinary contributions
made by all staff members during this trying period.

With the recent addition of a number of renowned professionals
in the education sector to the senior management team,
the Institute is poised to move ahead with the next phase of
its development.

Academic Programmes and Student Numbers

In 2006/07, the Institute continued to improve and fine-tune
its UGC-funded Bachelor of Arts (Hon) English Studies and
Education, Bachelor of Education (Hon) (English) Language -
Secondary, Bachelor of Education (Hon) (English) Language -
Primary, and Bachelor of Education (Hon) (Chinese) Language
- Secondary full-time programmes. A new part-time Bachelor
of Education (Hon) (Professional and Vocation Education)
programme was successfully validated and launched in 2007.
In addition, collaborative programmes with The Hong Kong
University of Science and Technology, The Hong Kong Polytechnic
University, Lingnan University, and The Chinese University of Hong
Kong continue to be offered.
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The total UGC-funded student number in Full-Time Equivalent
(“FTE”) terms studying at the Institute as at June 2007 had
reduced by 4.6% from 2005/06 to about 4,204. Of these,
about 2,652 FTE students were at degree level, 417 FTE
students were at post-graduate level, and the rest were at
sub-degree certificate level or studying in-service professional
development programmes.

In addition to the UGC-funded programmes, the Institute runs
a number of self-financing programmes. Among these, the
Master of Education continue to be a very popular programme
with enrollment of 233 and 146 for the first year and second
year respectively, equivalent to 189.5 FTE students altogether.
Another competitive new course is the Doctor of Education
programme (launched in 2007/08) which had enrolled 19
students for its first cohort. The admission of around 40
Mainland students in these two higher degree programmes in
2007/08 was most encouraging. With the growing need for in-
service teacher education on the Mainland, the Institute will see
healthy growth in our educational services in this region.

On the sub-degree side, the most popular self-funded courses
offered by the HKIEd School of Continuing and Professional
Education Limited (“SCPE”) were the Yi Jin programmes, with
about 1,619 FTE students, the Pre-Associate Degree and Associate
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Degree programmes with about 277 FTE students, and the
Centralised Scheme of Music Training which had taken about 99
FTE students.

In 2006/07, the SCPE was commissioned by the Standing
Committee on Language Education and Research to run five
groups of “Overseas Immersion Programme for English Teachers
in Primary Schools” which take place at universities in Australia
and Canada. The programme aims to provide participants with
the opportunity to experience innovative learning and teaching
methods, materials, curricula and activities in English as a second
language (ESL) context and to reflect on their own teaching in
Hong Kong. With this commission, the SCPE took a step further
in its contribution to the education sector in Hong Kong.

Income and Expenditure

The Institute had adopted the Hong Kong Financial Reporting
Standard (“HKFRS”) issued by the Hong Kong Institute of Certified
Public Accountants in the 2005/06 financial year. Further
updates from HKFRS were also incorporated in the Financial
Statements in this year. For details of the changes in accounting
policy in relation to the new standard, please refer to Note 2
of the Consolidated Financial Statements of the Institute. The
Institute continues to adopt up-to-date reporting standards in a
timely manner.
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Income

Apart from the reduction of $27 million in UGC Block Grants,
subventions from the UGC earmarked grants and from the
other government agencies for the Group were maintained at
about the 2005/06 level. Tuition and other fees from non-UGC-
funded programmes had increased by $14 million (21%) with
the major increase coming from self-financed programmes/
projects generated from teaching departments. Among these
programmes/projects, the Master of Education programme,
and the Certificate (KG) programme as well as other projects
commissioned by the Education Bureau (formerly known as
the Education and Manpower Bureau) continue to be the
major contributors.

Investment and interest income reported as “Other Gains - net”
increased by $21 million to $52.2 million as a result of upward
movement in deposit interest rates and realised profits from
equity disposal.

With the closing of the Government Matching Grant Scheme for
the UGC-funded institutions, endowment, donations, scholarships,
and bursaries received by the Institute during the year were
down by about $5 million to $27 million. However, with the
repositioning of the Institute, the Institute is confident that more
donations will be raised in the coming years.

Expenditure

The expenditure of the Institute for the year totalled $896
million, representing a slight increase of $51 million from $845
million in 2005/06. The increase came from all areas except for
Premises and Related Expenses, which decreased by $1.6 million
compared to last year. The decrease was mainly attributable
to the saving arising from the relocation of the Institute’s Town
Centre from Skyway House to The Long Beach, Taikoktsui. A
one-off increase in professional and legal fees contributed to
the increase in Management and General Expenses. Other
increases in expenditure were due to the preparation work for
the implementation of the new “3+3+4” education system.

Superannuation Scheme

Membership of the Hong Kong Institute of Education
Superannuation Scheme (“Superannuation Scheme”) stood at
246 members and the scheme had total net assets of about $365
million as at 30 June 2007.
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Expenditure B % 2006/07: $895.9 million $8.9591%
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3 O/ Student and General Education Services
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As one of the measures to improve staff morale at the Institute,
the Council approved to convert staff members who had been
working for the Institute for a number of years to superannuable
terms, and during the year, about 117 employees joined the
Superannuation Scheme.

Another 885 members of staff participate in the Mandatory
Provident Fund scheme with an approximate total net asset
value of about $86 million as at 30 june 2007.

Outlook

Hong Kong needs a University of Education. The role of teachers
is becoming more critical in the task of equipping the young
people of Hong Kong with life-long learning skills and the ability
to compete effectively in the global economy. In an era of
education reforms, rapid social, technological, and economic
changes, the training and professional development of teachers
has become more demanding than ever.
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During the year, the Commission of Inquiry, issues concerning
academic freedom and institutional autonomy, and staff
changes, have placed the Institute in the public eye for an
extended period. Now the Institute is moving forward with the
implementation of its Development Blueprint.

Self-financing activities have been expanding beyond Hong Kong.
The proposed policy changes in relation to non-local students
mentioned in the Chief Executive’s Policy Address will encourage
more Mainland and international students to study in Hong Kong.

New shoots and leaves are growing at the Institute. The Institute
has been recognised for excellence in developing professional
educators, and the quality of research in education and teacher
education. It is encouraging for everyone at the Institute that
the Institute has formally made an application to become The
University of Education, and aspires to be a leading education
university in the Asia-Pacific Region. The Institute will work hard
to make a significant contribution in promoting Hong Kong as an
education hub and to provide education services for the Mainland
and the region. This will break new ground in higher education
in Hong Kong.
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Five years statistics of the Institute 8 3; H4E G5

UGC-funded Student Numbers by Type of Education Sectors (in FTE)
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT TO THE COUNCIL
OF THE HONG KONG INSTITUTE OF EDUCATION

We have audited the consolidated financial statements of
The Hong Kong Institute of Education (the “Institute”) and its
subsidiary (together, the “Group”) set out on pages 11 to 52,
which comprise the consolidated and Institute balance sheets as
at 30 June 2007, and the consolidated income and expenditure
statement, the consolidated statement of changes in fund
balances and the consolidated cash flow statement for the year
then ended, and a summary of significant accounting policies and
other explanatory notes.

Council’s responsibility for the financial statements

The Council of the Institute is responsible for the preparation
and the true and fair presentation of these consolidated financial
statements in accordance with Hong Kong Financial Reporting
Standards issued by the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public
Accountants. This responsibility includes designing, implementing
and maintaining internal control relevant to the preparation
and the true and fair presentation of financial statements that
are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or
error; selecting and applying appropriate accounting policies;
and making accounting estimates that are reasonable in
the circumstances.

Auditor’s responsibility

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on these financial
statements based on our audit and to report our opinion solely to
you, as a body, in accordance with the Ordinance of the Institute,
and for no other purpose. We do not assume responsibility
towards or accept liability to any other person for the contents of
this report.

We conducted our audit in accordance with Hong Kong Standards
on Auditing issued by the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public
Accountants. Those standards require that we comply with
ethical requirements and plan and perform the audit to obtain
reasonable assurance as to whether the financial statements are
free from material misstatement.
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An audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit
evidence about the amounts and disclosures in the financial
statements. The procedures selected depend on the auditor’s
judgement, including the assessment of the risks of material
misstatement of the financial statements, whether due to
fraud or error. In making those risk assessments, the auditor
considers internal control relevant to the entity’s preparation
and true and fair presentation of the financial statements in
order to design audit procedures that are appropriate in the
circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion
on the effectiveness of the entity’s internal control. An audit also
includes evaluating the appropriateness of accounting policies
used and the reasonableness of accounting estimates made by
the Council, as well as evaluating the overall presentation of the
financial statements.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient
and appropriate to provide a basis for our audit opinion.

Opinion

In our opinion, the consolidated financial statements give a true
and fair view of the state of affairs of the Institute and of the Group
as at 30 June 2007 and of the surplus of the Institute and of the
Group, and the cash flows of the Group for the year then ended in
accordance with Hong Kong Financial Reporting Standards.

PricewaterhouseCoopers
Certified Public Accountants
Hong Kong, 30 November 2007
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)) THE HONG KONG INSTITUTE OF EDUCATION F#s ¥ H £ 5¢
(All amounts in Hong Kong dollars unless otherwise stated) (Br7AA# IS¢ » BT & BELL 25 B A7)

BALANCE SHEETS & & £ f&3%

AS AT 30 JUNE 2007 —ZEL4FENH=+H

a Group % H Institute #px
2007 2006 2007 2006
Note $’000 $’000 $’000 $’000
Bt e W Tt T 0 W Tt sl win
ASSETS i
Non-current Assets Ik 1 B ¥
Property, plant and equipment LYE W29 & Y 4 2,119,874 2,155,035 2,114,929 2,149,575
Investments Eid <y 5 1 1 1 1
Held-to-maturity investments FEIMA#E 6 36,468 212,651 36,468 212,651
Time deposits TE AT 7 6,389 9,185 6,389 9,185
2,162,732 2,376,872 2,157,787 2,371,412
Current Assets it B ¥
Held-to-maturity investments REIWHERE -
- current portion B 6 178,144 65,928 178,144 65,928
Accounts receivable, deposits JEMRIE - #4 T
and prepayments FEA K IE 8 13,183 26,706 7,910 27,146
F N VEBIR J 05
Financial assets at fair value AR ST R i B B
through profit or loss BB E 9 122,950 240,628 122,950 240,628
Time deposits - current portion TERAAFER — BB 7 203,283 268,399 203,283 268,399
Cash and cash equivalents B4 K B4 S E ) 10 673,562 263,036 664,990 256,099
1,191,122 864,697 1,177,277 858,200
Total Assets bogz 300 3,353,854 3,241,569 3,335,064 3,229,612
FUNDS It 4
Restricted funds TRERSE 11 27,390 23,219 27,390 23,219
Other funds HoAth 4 12 891,603 807,945 876,532 802,615
Deferred capital funds IEAEE A KL S 13 2,118,587 2,153,962 2,114,444 2,148,810
Total Funds 4 3,037,580 2,985,126 3,018,366 2,974,644
LIABILITIES fifE
Non-current Liabilities i B £
Provision for employee benefits 1@ B A A4 A 14 16,568 11,954 16,568 11,954
Borrowings B 15 6,870 8,126 6,870 8,126
23,438 20,080 23,438 20,080
Current Liabilities i B £ 1%
Accounts payable and accruals JE A BRTE S B 5 Tk IE 16 82,433 63,510 82,857 62,035
Provision for employee benefits 1IE B A5 F 4845 14 50,672 84,567 50,672 84,567
Borrowings K 15 1,256 1,220 1,256 1,220
Deferred income PEAEYTA 17 158,475 87,066 158,475 87,066
292,836 236,363 293,260 234,888
Total Liabilities £ fig i 316,274 256,443 316,698 254,968
Total Funds and Liabilities LKA M 3,353,854 3,241,569 3,335,064 3,229,612
NS

The notes on pages 15 to 52 are an integral part of these consolidated financial statements.
B A E ML AR A I B IR R B AL S 1

Thomas LEUNG Kwok-fai, 88s, jp e BHi L » KFali+ PANG Yiu-kai, Jp M {E » K Fai+
Chairman of the Council 2 & 3 i Treasurer #]Ji
LEE Wing-on ZER% Sarah WONG Man-yee # 5
Acting President #¥ Director of Finance BT R

FHWBE BB 2006/2007 B 11
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THE HONG KONG INSTITUTE OF EDUCATION ¥ H £kt
(All amounts in Hong Kong dollars unless otherwise stated) (Br7AA# IS¢ » BT & LA 25 B A7)

INCOME AND EXPENDITURE STATEMENT 3% %

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 30 JUNE 2007 # 1 —~FE-L4EAN A =1 HIL4EF

é Group £ Institute #pi
2007 2006 2007 2006
Note $’000 $’000 $’000 $’000
B E W Tt Nilica T W Tt W0
Income KA
Government subventions B 18 651,503 675,709 630,931 665,883
Tuition, programmes and A SRR A
other fees -4 19 222,327 209,098 167,595 203,122
Other gains - net HAthlets - HEH 20 52,158 30,744 51,765 30,634
Donations and benefactions LiEE WS EEL) 21 27,550 32,951 26,352 31,499
Auxiliary services i J Ml s 22 23,255 21,413 28,049 21,410
Other income FHoAtbg A 7,209 5116 36,096 4,180
984,002 975,031 940,788 956,728
Expenditure Xl 23
Learning and research BE KB
Instruction and research B E Y% 503,648 476,536 462,813 461,053
Library [ T 36,597 33,386 36,597 33,386
Central computing facilities LT A Rt 56,195 51,995 56,195 51,995
Other academic services HoAth B9l AR s 39,989 38,062 39,989 38,062
Institutional support bS8
Management and general — AT B R 65,662 55,197 66,892 54,974
Premises and related expenses ey Ko AH B B 52 160,500 162,087 158,837 160,767
Student and general
education services BLE R — BB RS 33,302 27,528 33,241 27,528
895,893 844,791 854,564 827,765
Finance Cost B AR 25 280 407 280 407
Surplus for the year before il 3% il A 4 E
transfers W 7 % 87,829 129,833 85,944 128,556
Transfers to: W
Restricted funds BE B4 11 (39) (35) (39) (35)
Other funds HoAth 4 12 87,868 129,868 85,983 128,591
87,829 129,833 85,944 128,556

N

The notes on pages 15 to 52 are an integral part of these consolidated financial statements.
B E T T E ML AR A B R B AL 0 o
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)) THE HONG KONG INSTITUTE OF EDUCATION F#s# & £2[5%

(All amounts in Hong Kong dollars unless otherwise stated) (B3 G AN » B & 5L B 25 B A)

CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN FUND BALANCES

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 30 JUNE 2007 #% = FFL4HNH =+ H ILFE

p
Deferred
capital Restricted Other
funds funds funds Total
IR HE B AL & REksE Hith s & Ham
$'000 $’000 $’000 $’000
T T Wi T W T
(Note13) (Notel1) (Note12)
(BfaE13) (HaET1) (Bf7E12)
Balance at 1 july 2005 W2 HAELH —HZER 2,193,708 16,093 678,238 2,888,039
Movement in deferred capital funds,
net IR HIE Y A 4 1 B ) VR A (39,746) - - (39,746)
Endowment funds received BAAREEEITA = 7,000 = 7,000
(39,746) 7,000 - (32,746)
Transfer (to)/from income and
expenditure statement (%) /LR - (35) 129,868 129,833
Inter-fund transfer B4 R - 161 (161) -
Balance at 30 June 2006 and R-BEAEAAZTHR
at 1 July 2006 ZERRASLH HZER 2,153,962 23,219 807,945 2,985,126
Movement in deferred capital funds,
net 8 T A R 11 5 8 U (35,375) = - (35,375)
Transfer (to)/from income and
expenditure statement (2 /Bl ® = (39) 87,868 87,829
Inter-fund transfer H 4 R - 4,210 (4,210) -
Balance at 30 June 2007 R_RFLEAH=ETHZER 2,118,587 27,390 891,603 3,037,580

N

The notes on pages 15 to 52 are an integral part of these consolidated financial statements.
55 BE T B A M RE 2 AR A B R R B AR O o

W HE BB 2006/2007 8 7 # i
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)) THE HONG KONG INSTITUTE OF EDUCATION F#s# & 2%

(All amounts in Hong Kong dollars unless otherwise stated) (Bi3 Gt HHAN » Bra & 5L B 25 B ()

CONSOLIDATED CASH FLOW STATEMENT ## &84

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 30 JUNE 2007 # 1 —FE-L4EAN A =1 H 1L 4E

by
JIL

Bk

p
2007 2006
Note $/000 $’000
e T T T
Cash flows from operating activities BEGB B S
Net cash generated from operating activities YRR O A 1 B4 VR R 26 141,787 29,680
Cash flows from investing activities WEE BB S
Purchase of property, plant and equipment B2 ~ Sl At (33,417) (28,113)
Proceeds from disposal of property, plant and equipment — H&EW 3 - 3 RS b s sk 26 25
Purchase of financial assets at fair value through profit W B AR N TE B IR SoB i £
or loss I BV W (39,233) (99,565)
New time deposits G AR (147,377) (43,728)
Purchase of held-to-maturity investments i R 2 B0 B R - (129,758)
Redemption of time deposits ) 5 A7 208,674 -
Redemption of financial assets at fair value through R ] 42 P ) R B i i S 3%
profit or loss i P A S S 164,805 20,545
Redemption of held-to-maturity investments L mESERT NN E Sy 66,000 130,000
Interest received FLEMA 50,761 32,637
Net cash generated from/(used in) investing activities REWEH I/ ) BE 270,239 (117,957)
Cash flows from financing activities S 35 ) P B v
Endowments received B ARG A = 7,000
Repayments of borrowings R (1,500) (1,500)
Net cash (used in)/generated from financing activities B TEE) (7)) /S B TR A (1,500) 5,500
Bl& KBS R/
Net increase/(decrease) in cash and cash equivalents (WA B8 410,526 (82,777)
Cash and cash equivalents at the beginning of the year SRR B R B EEY 263,036 345,813
Cash and cash equivalents at the end of the year AEL Bl A BB 10 673,562 263,036

&

The notes on pages 15 to 52 are an integral part of these consolidated financial statements.

Ht T BT A ZEIMIGE 2 AR LR B IR AR AL -

The Hong Kong Institute of Education Financial Report 2006 /2007



)) THE HONG KONG INSTITUTE OF EDUCATION F#s ¥ H 25
(All amounts in Hong Kong dollars unless otherwise stated) (Br7AA# IS¢ » BT & BELL 25 B A7)

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS HA%s i 3% i} 5t

2.1

General information

The Hong Kong Institute of Education and its subsidiaries
(the “Group”) are to provide teacher education and
facilities for research into and the development of
education. In addition, the Group also plans, establishes
and manages non-profit making schools or education
institutions to advance the cause of education.

The registered address of its office is at 10 Lo Ping Road,
Tai Po, New Territories, Hong Kong.

These consolidated financial statements are presented in
thousands of units of Hong Kong dollars (“$'000” or “K”),
unless otherwise stated. These consolidated financial
statements have been approved for issue by the Council
on 30 November 2007.

summary of significant accounting policies

The principal accounting policies adopted in the preparation
of the financial statements of the Group are set out as
below. These policies have been consistently applied to all
the years presented, unless otherwise stated.

Basis of preparation

The consolidated financial statements of the Group have
been prepared in accordance with Hong Kong Financial
Reporting Standards (“HKFRS”) and follow the guidelines
set out in the Statement of Recommended Accounting
Practice adopted by the Higher Educational Institutions
funded by the University Grants Committee (“UGC”) in
Hong Kong. The consolidated financial statements have
been prepared under the historical cost convention, as
modified by the revaluation of financial assets at fair value
through profit or loss, which are carried at fair value.

The preparation of consolidated financial statements in
conformity with HKFRS requires the use of certain critical
accounting estimates. It also requires management to
exercise its judgement in the process of applying the
Group’s accounting policies. However, there are no areas
involving a higher degree of judgement or complexity, or
areas where assumptions and estimates are significant to
the consolidated financial statements.

2.1
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)) THE HONG KONG INSTITUTE OF EDUCATION F#s % H £ 5¢
(All amounts in Hong Kong dollars unless otherwise stated) (Bi3 G a1 » B & 5L W25 B ()

2.1

2.2

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS H# %5 # < b 5i:

summary of significant accounting policies
(Continued)

Basis of preparation (Continued)

Standard and amendment to an existing standard that are

relevant to the Group but not yet effective and have not

been early adopted by the Group

The following standard and amendment have been
published that are relevant and mandatory for the Group’s
accounting periods commencing from 1 July 2007 but
which the Group has not early adopted:

e HKFRS 7, Financial Instruments: Disclosures, and the
complementary Amendment to Hong Kong Accounting
Standard (“HKAS”) 1, Presentation of Financial
Statements - Capital Disclosures.

HKFRS 7 introduces new disclosures to improve the
information about financial instruments. It requires the
disclosure of qualitative and quantitative information
about exposure to risks arising from financial instruments,
including specified minimum disclosures about credit risk,
liquidity risk and market risk, including sensitivity analysis
to market risk. The amendment to HKAS 1 introduces
disclosures about the level of an entity’s capital and how
it manages capital. The Group has assessed the impact of
HKFRS 7 and the amendment to HKAS 1 and concluded that
there is no significant impact on the consolidated financial
statements other than certain additional disclosures.

Consolidation

The consolidated financial statements include the financial
statements of the Institute and its subsidiaries made up to
30 June.

Subsidiaries are entities in which the Group has the power
to govern the financial and operating policies generally
accompanying with a shareholding of more than one half of
the voting rights. Existence and effect of potential voting rights
that are currently exercisable or convertible are considered
when assessing whether the Group controls another entity.

The Hong Kong Institute of Education Financial Report 2006 /2007
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2.2

2.3

summary of significant accounting policies
(Continued)

Consolidation (Continued)

Subsidiaries are fully consolidated from the date on
which control is transferred to the Group. They are
de-consolidated from the date that control ceases.

Inter-company transactions, balances and unrealised gains
on transactions between group entities are eliminated.
Unrealised losses are also eliminated unless the transaction
provides evidence of an impairment of the asset
transferred. Accounting policies of subsidiaries have been
changed where necessary to ensure consistency with the
policies adopted by the Group.

In the Institute’s balance sheet, the investment in subsidiaries
is stated at cost less provision for impairment losses.

Foreign currency translation
(a) Functional and presentation currency

Items included in the financial statements of all the
Group’s entities are measured using the currency
of the primary economic environment in which the
entity operates (“the functional currency”). The
consolidated financial statements are presented in
Hong Kong dollars, which is the Institute and group
entities” functional and presentation currency.

(b) Transactions and balances

Foreign currency transactions are translated
into the functional currency using the exchange
rates prevailing at the dates of the transactions.
Foreign exchange gains and losses resulting from
the settlement of such transactions and from
the translation at year-end exchange rates of
monetary assets and liabilities denominated in
foreign currencies are recognised in the income and
expenditure statement.

Translation differences on non-monetary items, such
as financial assets at fair value through profit or loss,
are reported as part of the fair value gain or loss.
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)) THE HONG KONG INSTITUTE OF EDUCATION Fi#s 8 H 2 5¢
(All amounts in Hong Kong dollars unless otherwise stated) (Bi3 Gt HHAN » Bra & 5L B 25 B ()

24

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS i %5 #t 4< b 5i:

summary of significant accounting policies
(Continued)

Property, plant and equipment

Property, plant and equipment are stated at historical
cost less accumulated depreciation and accumulated
impairment losses. Historical cost includes expenditure
that is directly attributable to the acquisition of the items.

Subsequent costs are included in the asset’s carrying
amount or recognised as a separate asset, as appropriate,
only when it is probable that future economic benefits
associated with the item will flow to the Group and the
cost of the item can be measured reliably. All other
repairs and maintenance are expensed in the income and
expenditure statement during the financial period in which
they are incurred.

Leasehold improvements are depreciated over their
expected useful lives or the unexpired period of the lease
on a straight-line basis, whichever is shorter. Depreciation
of other property, plant and equipment is calculated using
the straight-line method to allocate cost to their residual
values over their estimated useful lives, as follows:

50 Years
3 to 5 Years

- Buildings
- Fixtures and equipment

The assets’ residual values and useful lives are reviewed,
and adjusted if appropriate, at each balance sheet date.

An asset’s carrying amount is written down immediately
to its recoverable amount if the asset’s carrying amount is
greater than its estimated recoverable amount.

Gains and losses on disposals are determined by comparing
the proceeds with the carrying amount and are recognised
in the consolidated income and expenditure statement.

The Hong Kong Institute of Education Financial Report 2006 /2007
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2.5

2.6

summary of significant accounting policies
(Continued)

Impairment of non-financial assets and investments
in subsidiaries

Assets that have an indefinite useful life are not subject
to amortisation and are tested annually for impairment.
Assets that are subject to depreciation or amortisation are
reviewed for impairment whenever events or changes in
circumstances indicate that the carrying amount may not
be recoverable. An impairment loss is recognised for the
amount by which the asset’s carrying amount exceeds
its recoverable amount. The recoverable amount is the
higher of an asset’s fair value less costs to sell and value in
use. For the purposes of assessing impairment, assets are
grouped at the lowest levels for which there are separately
identifiable cash flows (cash-generating units). Assets that
suffered an impairment are reviewed for possible reversal
of the impairment at each reporting date.

Financial assets

The Group classifies its financial assets in the following
categories: financial assets at fair value through profit or loss,
loans and receivables and held-to-maturity investments.
The classification depends on the purpose for which the
financial assets were acquired. Management determines
the classification of its financial assets at initial recognition
and re-evaluates this designation at every reporting date.

Reqgular purchases and sales of financial assets are
recognised on the trade-date - the date on which the
Group commits to purchase or sell the asset. Investments
are initially recognised at fair value plus transaction
costs for all financial assets not carried at fair value
through profit or loss.
value through profit or loss are initially recognised at
fair value, and transaction costs are expensed in the
income and expenditure statement. Financial assets are

Financial assets carried at fair

derecognised when the rights to receive cash flows from
the investments have expired or have been transferred
and the Group has transferred substantially all risks and
rewards of ownership.
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)) THE HONG KONG INSTITUTE OF EDUCATION F#s % H £ 5¢
(All amounts in Hong Kong dollars unless otherwise stated) (Br7AA IS¢ » BT & AL 25 B A7)

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS H# %5 # 4< b 5i:

2.6

summary of significant accounting policies
(Continued)

Financial assets (Continued)

(3

(b)

©

Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss

A financial asset is classified as fair value through
profit or loss if acquired principally for the purpose
of selling in the short term or if so designated by
management. Assets in this category are classified
as current assets if they are either held for trading or
are expected to be realised within 12 months of the
balance sheet date.

Gains or losses arising from changes in the fair
value are presented in the income and expenditure
statement in the period in which they arise. Dividend
income from financial assets at fair value through
profit or loss is recognised in the income and
expenditure statement as part of other income when
the Group’s right to receive payments is established.

Loans and receivables

Loans and receivables representing time deposits
are non-derivative financial assets with fixed or
determinable payments that are not quoted in an active
market. They arise when the Group provides money or
services directly to a debtor with no intention of trading
the receivable. They are included in current assets,
except for maturities greater than 12 months after the
balance sheet date. These are classified as non-current
assets. They are initially recognised at fair value and
subsequently measured at amortised cost using the
effective interest method, unless the discounting effect
is insignificant, less provision for impairment.

Held-to-maturity investments

Held-to-maturity investments are non-derivative
financial assets with fixed or determinable payments
and fixed maturities that the management has the
positive intention and ability to hold to maturity.
Held-to-maturity investments are carried at
amortised cost using the effective interest method.

The Hong Kong Institute of Education Financial Report 2006 /2007
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2.6

2.7

summary of significant accounting policies
(Continued)

Financial assets (Continued)

The Group assesses at each balance sheet date whether
there is objective evidence that a financial asset or
a group of financial assets is impaired. If there is
objective evidence that an impairment loss on loans and
receivables or held-to-maturity investments carried at
amortised cost has been incurred, the amount of the
loss is measured as the difference between the asset’s
carrying amount and the present value of estimated
future cash flows (excluding future credit losses that have
not been incurred) discounted at the financial asset’s
original effective interest rate. The amount of the loss is
recognised in income and expenditure statement.

The fair values of quoted investments are based on
current bid prices. If the market for a financial asset is not
active (and for unlisted securities), the Group establishes
fair value by using valuation techniques. These include
the use of recent arm’s length transactions or reference
to other instruments that are substantially the same and
discounted cash flow analysis.

Accounts receivable, deposits and prepayments

Receivables are recognised initially at fair value and
subsequently measured at amortised cost using the
effective interest method, unless the discounting effect
is insignificant, less provision for impairment. A provision
for impairment of receivables is established when there
is objective evidence that the Group will not be able to
collect all amounts due according to the original terms of
receivables. The amount of the provision is the difference
between the asset’s carrying amount and the present
value of estimated future cash flows, discounted at the
effective interest rate, unless the discounting effect is
insignificant. The amount of the provision is recognised in
the income and expenditure statement.
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2.8

2.9

2.10

2.11

summary of significant accounting policies
(Continued)

Cash and cash equivalents

Cash and cash equivalents include cash in hand, deposits
held at call with banks and other short-term highly liquid
investments with original maturities of three months
or less.

Accounts payable and accruals

Accounts payable and accruals are recognised initially at
fair value and subsequently measured at amortised cost
using the effective interest method, unless the discounting
effect is insignificant.

Borrowings

Borrowings are recognised initially at fair value, net of
directly attributable transaction costs incurred. Borrowings
are subsequently stated at amortised cost; any difference
between the proceeds (net of transaction costs) and
the redemption value is recognised in the income and
expenditure statement over the period of the borrowings
using the effective interest method. Borrowings are
classified into current and non-current liabilities. They
are classified as current liabilities unless the Group has
unconditional right to defer settlement of the liability for
at least 12 months after the balance sheet date.

Employee benefits
(a) Employee leave entitlements

Employee entitlements to annual leave are
recognised when they accrue to employees. A
provision is made for the estimated liability for
unutilised annual leave as a result of services
rendered by employees up to the balance sheet date.

Employee entitlements to sick leave and maternity
leave are not recognised until the time of leave.
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2. summary of significant accounting policies
(Continued)

2.11 Employee benefits (Continued)

(b) Superannuation scheme

©

The Institute has set up a superannuation scheme (the
“Scheme”) to provide its employees with benefits on
retirement or termination of employment.

The Scheme is divided into two sub-schemes: Scheme
A and Scheme B. Scheme A is a hybrid scheme
that has both the features of a defined contribution
scheme and a defined benefit scheme. A factor called
the Scheme A Benefit Factor (which is determined by
the Actuary from time to time) is used in calculating
the benefits of Scheme A members. The trustee, in
consultation with the Actuary of the Scheme, considers
that by application of the Scheme A Benefit Factor as
defined under the Trust Deed, the Scheme wiill always
remain solvent. Scheme B is a defined contribution
scheme. Members of both sub-schemes contribute
50 of their basic monthly salaries to the Scheme
and benefits are paid to them on their retirement or
on leaving employment subject to certain conditions
as stipulated in the Trust Deed. Contributions to the
Scheme are expensed as incurred and other than
those monthly contributions, the Institute has no
further obligation for the payment of termination or
retirement benefits of its employees.

The Scheme A was wound up on 11 August 2006
and all its members transferred their account
balances to the Scheme B.

Mandatory provident fund scheme

The Group has established mandatory provident fund
schemes (“MPF scheme”) in Hong Kong. The assets
of the MPF scheme are held in separate trustee-
administered funds. Both the Group and the employees
are required to contribute 5% of the employees’
relevant income, subject to a maximum of $1,000 per
employee per month. The Group’s contribution to the
MPF scheme is expensed as incurred.
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2.12

2.13

THE HONG KONG INSTITUTE OF EDUCATION ¥ H £kt

(All amounts in Hong Kong dollars unless otherwise stated) (B3 G AN » B & 5L B 25 B ()

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS H# %5 # 4< b 5i:

summary of significant accounting policies
(Continued)

Provisions

Provisions are recognised when the Group has a present
legal or constructive obligation as a result of past events;
it is probable that an outflow of resources will be required
to settle the obligation; and the amount has been reliably
estimated. Provisions are not recognised for future
operating losses.

Where there are a number of similar obligations, the
likelihood that an outflow will be required in settlements
is determined by considering the class of obligations as a
whole. A provision is recognised even if the likelihood of
an outflow with respect to any one item included in the
same class of obligations may be small.

Revenue recognition

Recurrent subventions and grants are recognised as
income over the periods necessary to match them with
the related costs which they are intended to compensate,
on a systemic basis.

Government subventions and grants, which are
earmarked for specific purposes, are initially recognised
3as deferred income when there is a reasonable assurance
that the Group will comply with the conditions attached
to it and that the subventions will be received. They are
recognised in the income and expenditure statement on a
systematic basis to match with the related costs for which
they are intended to be used.

Government subventions and grants, and donations
spent on capital expenditure are recorded as deferred
capital funds and are released and credited to the income
and expenditure statement on a straight-line basis over
the estimated useful lives of the related assets when
the assets are put in use, to the extent of the related
depreciation expense for that period.

Tuition programmes and other fees, and auxiliary services
income are recognised on a straight-line basis over the
period of the courses or services to which they relate.

The Hong Kong Institute of Education Financial Report 2006 /2007
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2.12

2.14

summary of significant accounting policies
(Continued)

Provisions (Continued)

Donations and benefactions are recognised as income
when received or are receivable when the rights of
collection can be established by the Group. Outstanding
pledges will not be recognised as income unless a legal
obligation on the donor can be established by the Group.

Interest income is recognised on a time proportion basis,
taking into account the principal amounts outstanding and
the effective interest rates. When a receivable is impaired,
the Group reduces the carrying amount to its recoverable
amount, being the estimated future cash flow discounted at
original effective interest rate of the instrument, and continues
unwinding the discount as interest income. Interest income
on impaired loans is recognised either as cash is collected or
on a cost-recovery basis as conditions warrant.

Endowments are credited to restricted funds in the year
in which they are received. Income generated from
endowments is recognised in the income and expenditure
statement. Endowments are transferred from restricted
funds and credited to the income and expenditure
statement when the condition for maintenance of the

principal amounts has expired or been waived by donors.

Dividend income is recognised when the right to receive
payment is established.

Operating lease rental income is recognised on a straight-
line basis.

Operating lease

Leases in which a significant portion of the risks and
rewards of ownership are retained by the lessor are
classified as operating leases. Payments made under
operating leases (net of any incentives received from
the lessor) are charged to the consolidated income and
expenditure statement on a straight-line basis over the
period of the lease.
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)) THE HONG KONG INSTITUTE OF EDUCATION F#s % & 2%

(All amounts in Hong Kong dollars unless otherwise stated) (B3 G AN » B & 5L B 25 B ()

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS H# %5 # 4< b 5i:

3 Financial Risk Management

3.1 Financial risk factors

There is no significant financial risk, in terms of credit risk,
liquidity risk, interest rate risk, foreign exchange risk and
price risk, in connection with the Group’s operations. These
risks are managed and mitigated by the Group’s financial
management policies and practices described below:

(a) Credit risk

(b)

©

The Group has no significant concentration of credit
risk. The Group’s credit risk is primarily attributable to
its accounts receivable. There are procedures in place
and the exposures to these credit risks are monitored
closely on an ongoing basis.

The credit risk on cash and cash equivalents is limited
as the counterparties are banks with high credit ratings
assigned by international credit-rating agencies. All
held-to-maturity financial assets are of investment
grade and are monitored by the management from
time to time. The Group has policies that limit the
amount of credit exposure to any financial institutions.
Investments of the Group are limited to high-credit-
quality financial institutions.

Liquidity risk

The Group’s policy is to monitor current and expected
liquidity requirements reqularly to ensure that it
maintains sufficient reserves of cash to meet its
liquidity requirements in both short and longer terms.

Cash flow and fair value interest rate risk

The Group’s interest rate risk arises mainly from the
interest bearing financial assets held under treasury
investments, which are reviewed on a regular basis in
accordance with the Group’s policies and guidelines.
The cash flow interest rate risk is considered low
as the Group has no significant interest bearing
financial liabilities.

The Hong Kong Institute of Education Financial Report 2006 /2007
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3

3.1

3.2

Financial Risk Management (Continued)

Financial risk factors (Continued)

(d)

(e)

Foreign exchange risk

The Group’s foreign currency exposures arise mainly
from, and substantially limited to, the exchange rate
movements of the Hong Kong dollars and United
States dollars because part of the financial assets
held under treasury investments are denominated in
United States dollars. However, the foreign exchange
risk is low as there is a Linked Exchange Rate System
for Hong Kong dollars and United States dollars.

Price Risk

The Group is exposed to equity securities price risk
because it has financial assets at fair value through
profit or loss. However, the Group is not exposed to
commodity price risk.

Fair value estimation

The nominal value less impairment provision of accounts
receivable and payables are assumed to approximate their
fair values. They are estimated by discounting the future

contractual cash flows at the current market interest
rate that is available to the Group for similar financial
instruments. Estimates and judgements are continually
evaluated and are based on historical experience and
other factors, including expectations of future events that
are believed to be reasonable under the circumstances.
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)) THE HONG KONG INSTITUTE OF EDUCATION F#E# & 2%

(All amounts in Hong Kong dollars unless otherwise stated) (Br7AA IS¢ » BT & AL 25 B A7)

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS H# %5 #t 4< b 5i:

4. Property, plant and equipment 4. W - it M
4
Group M
Leasehold Fixtures and
Buildings improvements equipment Total
B LiV-EIE S 3 R Rk s
$’000 $’000 $’000 $’000
W T W Tt T W T
At 1 July 2005 R-ZEZHAELH —HZXER
Cost %N 2,370,717 41,080 247,045 2,658,842
Accumulated depreciation 2EHine (225,354) (16,190) (220,526) (462,070)
Net book amount AR T 2,145,363 24,890 26,519 2,196,772
Year ended 30 June 2006 BEZZZNEAA=ZTHILEE
Opening net book amount 3400 % T VL 2,145,363 24,890 26,519 2,196,772
Additions WNE 5,206 10,599 12,308 28,113
Disposals i
- cost - A - - (14,220) (14,220)
- accumulated depreciation - BEpdree - - 14,155 14,155
- - (65) (65)
Depreciation s (47,575) (6,358) (15,852) (69,785)
Closing net book amount A T (L 2,102,994 29,131 22,910 2,155,035
At 30 June 2006 REREANEAA =T HZ 451
Cost B 2,375,923 51,679 245,133 2,672,735
Accumulated depreciation Bt e (272,929) (22,548) (222,223) (517,700)
Net book amount BRI RA 2,102,994 29,131 22,910 2,155,035
Year ended 30 June 2007 BREZZRZELHEANH =1 HIE4E
Opening net book amount ) B T V(L 2,102,994 29,131 22,910 2,155,035
Additions WE 4,196 16,233 12,988 33,417
Disposals e
- cost - A (507) (7,660) (11,812) (19,979)
- accumulated depreciation - AnHreE 483 7,610 11,012 19,105
(24) (50) (800) (874)
Depreciation e (47,570) (8,551) (11,583) (67,704)
Closing net book amount AR T 2,059,596 36,763 23,515 2,119,874
At 30 June 2007 R-EZLEAA=ZTHZER
Cost JEAR 2,379,612 60,252 246,309 2,686,173
Accumulated depreciation Hilines (320,016) (23,489) (222,794) (566,299)
Net book amount S FE 2,059,596 36,763 23,515 2,119,874

N
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Property, plant and equipment (Continued) 4. X - BHEBM
e
Institute ki
Leasehold Fixtures and
Buildings improvements equipment Total
i &3 LN EUE S 30 56 E Rk A
$/000 $/000 $000 $/000
i H W T T W T
At 1 July 2005 RERFHALH —HZEE
Cost AR 2,366,953 38,749 242,052 2,647,754
Accumulated depreciation BEHreE (224,969) (15,129) (217,336) (457,434)
Net book amount BT A 2,141,984 23,620 24,716 2,190,320
Year ended 30 June 2006 BREZZZANEAA=STHILERE
Opening net book amount 01490 4 T 2,141,984 23,620 24,716 2,190,320
Additions E 5,143 10,516 11,971 27,630
Transfers (Note a) A ([ E )
- cost - B - - (92) (92)
- accumulated depreciation - RFHTH - - - -
S = (92) (92)
Disposals e
- cost - A = s (14,220) (14,220)
- accumulated depreciation - BEFHT# - - 14,155 14,155
- - (65) (65)
Depreciation by (47,501) (5,951) (14,766) (68,218)
Closing net book amount HA AR TV (FL 2,099,626 28,185 21,764 2,149,575
At 30 June 2006 REBBANEAH = HZ2ET
Cost A 2,372,096 49,265 239,711 2,661,072
Accumulated depreciation ZEtines (272,470) (21,080) (217,947) (511,497)
Net book amount BT E 2,099,626 28,185 21,764 2,149,575
Year ended 30 June 2007 BREZZZLEAH=1THILEE
Opening net book amount 29 0% T V(L 2,099,626 28,185 21,764 2,149,575
Re-classification Givipg:|
- cost - AR (482) 482 = =
- accumulated depreciation - EEHFH 482 (482) - -
Transfers (Note b) WO (7 2)
- cost - A - (7,752) (1,083) (8,835)
- accumulated depreciation - ExHFH - 7,699 779 8,478
- (53) (304) (357)
Additions WE 4,259 15,964 12,473 32,696
Disposals e
- cost - A (25) (390) (11,629) (12,044)
- accumulated depreciation - REHFEE 1 390 10,829 11,220
(24) - (800) (824)
Depreciation Eilx (47,498) (8,069) (10,594) (66,161)
Closing net book amount HA AR T 1 (EL 2,056,363 36,027 22,539 2,114,929
At 30 June 2007 REZBRZLEAA=THZEE
Cost A 2,375,848 57,569 239,472 2,672,889
Accumulated depreciation i (319,485) (21,542) (216,933) (557,960)
Net book amount R T VB 2,056,363 36,027 22,539 2,114,929

N

Note a: This represents the transfer of property, plant and equipment to the HKIEd jockey Club Primary School (a division of the subsidiary,

the HKIEd Schools Limited) on 31 August 2005 at cost.

Note b: This represents the transfer of property, plant and equipment to the HKIEd School of Continuing and Professional Education Limited

(a subsidiary) at net book value as at 1 July 2006.
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5.

THE HONG KONG INSTITUTE OF EDUCATION ¥ H £kt
(All amounts in Hong Kong dollars unless otherwise stated) (Bi3 Gt HHAN » Bra & 5L B 25 B ()

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS i %5 # 3 b 5i:

Investments 5. #%
4 .
Group and Institute
A B A F b
2007 2006
$’000 $’000
W T T o0
Investment in subsidiaries and institutional entities  Zk B 7€ B8 48 7 FIE 8 ks 2 10& 1 1
S
Note a: Investment in subsidiaries

Note b:

WhaEH

Wit -

The Institute has a 100% (2006: 100%) interest, without investment cost, in the HKIEd Schools Limited which was incorporated
in Hong Kong on 14 December 1998 as a company limited by guarantee. The purpose of the company is to plan, establish and
manage schools.

The Institute has a 100% interest, without investment cost, in the HKIEd School of Continuing and Professional Education Limited
("HKIEd SCPE”) which was incorporated in Hong Kong on 28 June 2006 as a company limited by guarantee. The purpose of the
company is to set up, maintain and operate, in conjunction with the Institute, a non-profit making organisation for the promotion and
advancement of professional, technical and continuing education, foster and provide courses leading to awards as well as courses
of general interest, and where appropriate, provide learning opportunities in or outside Hong Kong. The HKIEd SCPE has taken over
and manages the assets, liabilities, responsibilities and mission of the Division of Continuing Professional Education of the HKIED. The
transfer of the funds, assets and liabilities took effect on 1 July 2006.

The results of these subsidiaries are accounted for in the Group’s consolidated financial statements.
Investment in institutional entities

The Institute holds 1 share of S500 (2006: 1 share of $500), representing 12.5% of the share capital of the joint Universities
Computer Centre Limited, a company providing computer services for the UGC - funded Higher Educational Institutions in Hong Kong.

The Institute has a 12.5% interest, without investment cost, in joint University Programmes Admissions System (“JUPAS”) which was
incorporated on 18 September 1990 as a company limited by guarantee. The purpose of the company is to administer and operate
the joint admissions system for and on behalf of each member of the JUPAS.

The Institute holds a 25% interest, without investment cost, in EdExchange Limited which was incorporated in Hong Kong on 21
March 2005 as a company limited by guarantee. The purpose of the company is to promote education and to provide financial
assistance and subsidies for the purposes of education and training to educational charities, scholarships, fellowships and bursaries in
Hong Kong and elsewhere.

The Institute has a 12.5% interest, without investment cost, in joint Quality Review Committee Limited (’JQRC”) which was
incorporated on 26 August 2005 as a company limited by guarantee. The purpose of the company is to provide and implement a
peer review framework for the quality assurance of self-financing, associate-degree programmes in the continuing education units
of the members in the JORC.

Given the nature of these institutional entities and their insignificance of the investment costs, the Institute did not account for them

in its financial records. In addition, taking into consideration that there are no significant operations in these institutional entities and
they are immaterial to the Group, their results are not accounted for in the Group’s consolidated financial statements.

WL il 2 87 E
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IR R A F] o FEF 0 73 ~ o Je PR AG -

HBLINFE Tl SR B A S B B e A IR ml (T F b 1) 2 100% s (R HEMAR) » B al it —FFNEANA =1 /AH
TERFHEAOL A IRIG (R 2 Al o A2 2 ] 2 B il or S — R HE R FULE M - (RHE RS ~ SRR > PRI IR (AR s L e — M
B RTE o A (FEB VLT ) SR O TSN A A B o 1A R AR Be B IE BB T I P A B B R i e T L ~ A - AT
A E R - A - EEMAKNEBOR —FENECH —AEM -

UEZE I 23 Al 19 AT A A SR 9 25 BB FRA A

TEE M2 &

BB IR — R AT (B W T o (BN - — R B W T 0) 2 KB & TS 0 IR AR O - AR % o AR AR 2 12.5% = 4
] L ER P TS IRES THE & BN B B EHF B -

The Hong Kong Institute of Education Financial Report 2006 /2007



Investments (Continued) 5. 8#&w
WIREZ - 7R REME 2 HE 7 ()

BBE I KA IR (R0 1) 12.5% 2 (R RERA) o BEoFl—SULFEFIA A/ S B AT BRIER A Al o FH B2 0%
2L 1A 15 1] 5 PR A A A Y

HbtFAEdExchange LimitedZ25% 14 (R FHEEMA) o MLs it BRI = = — HETH#EML 25 HRIGIR A A« HA Y212
HERFTFH, WAPSFBARTIM 2 - L2 B i I Al ol 7y 19 20 7 25 25 PR AR (SR R 3 ~ DR GE R R B) A28 o

HBeHEfijoint Quality Review Committee Limited ([ZE 8 #r)) 12.5% W s (R A BEA) o Sy Al ZFEH7AF/\H A7 HEL A
BRIGORLN ] o o H 1942 7425 B € A B 9 FFAEESFB P09 1 B Z6 i ) 58 - B2 (v i PR 42 (L At 17 ] S b it ) B
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Held-to-maturity investments 6. HFEIMHBPE
e .
Group and Institute
5 10 A e
2007 2006
$/000 $'000
bl T T
Listed, at amortised cost T HEER S AR
- listed outside Hong Kong - TERWLS Bl 6,279 32,059
Unlisted, at amortised cost IE BTl HEes A 208,333 246,520
214,612 278,579
Less: Current portion classified as current assets ¥ : JiEh &R0 4305 44 i Bh & (178,144) (65,928)
36,468 212,651
AN
Time deposits 7. WA
e .
Group and Institute
£ Fn ke
2007 2006
$’000 $’000
EW¥T T T
Time deposits with original maturity over 3
months or above JEZE ) F A 308 H B DA_E R AT K
Current portion W FR A
- Unpledged - KR 182,283 247,399
- Pledged - BRI 21,000 21,000
203,283 268,399
Non-current portion FE BB 1y 6,389 9,185
209,672 277,584

(&

Tl BOH BBt 2006/2007 11 75 4

31



32

»

7.

8.

THE HONG KONG INSTITUTE OF EDUCATION % H £kt
(All amounts in Hong Kong dollars unless otherwise stated) (Br7AA IS¢ » BT & AL 25 B A7)

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS H# %5 #t 4< b 5i:

Time deposits (Continued) 7.  EWAERR s

The effective interest rate on time deposits with original i E 9 H A 38 H B A A AR
maturity over 3 months or above was 4.4% (2006: 3.6%); BERF R A.400 (T EENE : 3.6%) ;
these deposits have an average maturity of 223 days WEFHFHRWH A2230 (ZF%
(2006: 176 days). AN 176H) o

The pledged time deposits of $15 million and $6 million EMTHEE—T HE ST REESE
are used respectively as securities for a loan from the BT E 43 RV s 4 AT I8 BORT B
HKSAR Government disclosed in Note 15 and for the PRI (B 5E15), DLRAEAR
Group’s bank overdrafts facilities which have not been SR ERATIE R HEHT > M SR A AR
utilised as at year end (2006: $ Nil). MRE N (B ENE  E) o

Accounts receivable, deposits and prepayments 8.  BEMCIEE - 34 K A kI

p
Group 4 Institute ¥kt
2007 2006 2007 2006
$’000 $’000 $’000 $’000
BT T W T T
Accounts receivable T BETE 15,171 27,778 8,372 27,718
Less: Provision for impairment 3 : BENS MR TE e
of receivables (Note a) (KftaEHH) (3,723) (1,837) (2,106) (1,837)
11,448 25,941 6,266 25,881
Prepayments T FIH 1,212 242 856 214
Amount due from a subsidiary — E & 2 7 Z 308
(Note b) (Kt ) = - 394 534
Security deposits PRiE g 523 523 394 517
13,183 26,706 7,910 27,146
N\
The fair value of accounts receivable, deposits and BEZEZFLEM_FEANEAA=ZT
prepayments approximates their carrying values for both HEBABCAE B, MEARHRIE - 424 TR AT
financial years ended 30 June 2007 and 2006. BB FE S B H AR T (E AR

Note a: The Group has recognised a loss of $2,560K (2006: $1,837K) for the impairment of its accounts receivable during the year ended 30
June 2007. The loss has been mainly included in office expenses under “Instruction and research”, “Management and general” and
“Students and general education services” in the income and expenditure statement, to the extent of S886K (2006: 51,009K), 51,534K
(2006: S828K) and $140K (2006: Nil) respectively.

Note b: The amount due is unsecured, interest-free and payable on demand.

BGE T R T F AN = H IR AFE GRS ARTE 0 6k (B 5 45 4 W — T 2 N B0 (B FNAE - Bl — i A\ =5 TFor) -
T HE B TEAMTE R [ BB R TE |~ [—RATEE R | R [ Re— R BT IR | gL S B SCAT - 237 25 i e /A /BN s (=%
TN R T EEILT ) W S BT (RN A BT or) R BT (RN ) .

WtEZ + BERENSCSRIENIE JEAIEA ~ G 8 A A 7
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9. Financial assets at fair value through profit 9. 32 V- 5k & & Bk X K g9

or loss Iy 0 15 e
( .
Group and Institute
£ Fn b
2007 2006
$’000 S’000
wHT I T oo
Listed equity securities in Hong Kong, at fair value s ETRERR SR > A TE = 10,654
Unlisted structured notes and deposits, at fair value  FE LTS IR AEK > 450 T(E 121,432 228,699
Unlisted investment in unit trust, at fair value I b EAE ARG WA THE 1,518 1,275
122,950 240,628
N\

Note:  Changes in fair values of financial assets at fair value through profit or loss are recorded in “Other gains — net” in the income and
expenditure statement. (Note 20)
BFE LN THE SR K B AN 5T 7 S B B 3 19 2 T B Y 7 i S R i 2 [ FoA i i — V948 | (MfRE20) »

10. Cash and cash equivalents 10. Be&RAESHY
4
Group %M Institute #bt
2007 2006 2007 2006
$’000 $’000 $’000 $’000
W T I W0 T i
Cash at bank and in hand SRAT B F I 9,585 11,948 6,267 8,057
Short-term bank deposits % #ASRFTAE K 663,977 251,088 658,723 248,042
673,562 263,036 664,990 256,099
N
The effective interest rate on short-term bank deposits SRR EBRAMREA4.7% (%
was 4.7% (2006: 4.2%); these deposits have an average TR T 4.20%) 5 AR TR
maturity of 32 days (2006: 32 days). HAE32H (ZFEENHE 32H) ©

B BHE BB 2006/2007 1 H5 5 33
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11.

Restricted funds

THE HONG KONG INSTITUTE OF EDUCATION & its B £
(All amounts in Hong Kong dollars unless otherwise stated) (B3 G AN » B & 5L B 25 B ()

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS H# %5 #t 4< b 5i:

11. #HEkL

e
Group and Institute
£ B Fn e
Unspent
Endowment balance for
funds research Total
BARS  RADIZELi6R AR
$’000 $’000
W T W T
(Note a)
(BftaE )
Balance at 1 July 2005 REBFHAELH —HZET 11,538 4,555 16,093
Transfer to income and
expenditure statement R R (35) - (35)
Endowment funds received RIS A 7,000 = 7,000
Inter-fund transfer (Note 12) HE 4G AR (B E12) (105) 266 161
Balance at 30 June 2006 and R-EEAEAAZTHREZEAN
at 1 July 2006 ELH—HZEF 18,398 4,821 23,219
Transfer to income and
expenditure statement LG ET e (39) - (39)
Inter-fund transfer (Note 12) FE A5 AR (B ET12) - 4,210 4,210
Balance at 30 June 2007 NoBBELENA=THZER 18,359 9,031 27,390
_
Note a: The breakdown and movements of endowment funds for the year 2006/07 are analysed as follows:
it GE R AN /B AT B A B S R AR S B A
Balance at Balance at
1July 30 June
2006 2007
20064F Funds Income Expenditure Transfer 20074
7H1H received for the year for the year for the year 6H30H
ZHitE HEBA AR FEWA AT AT B i Z 5t
$7000 $’000 $’000 $7000 $’000 $’000
il W W T W T W T W T W T
Cheung’s Family Charity Fund  RIRZ %4 3,058 - 132 (111) - 3,079
Shun Hing Education and
Charity Fund 5 P W 4 5,324 - 214 (310) - 5,228
Sir Gordon Ying-Sheung WU HMEM S £ 6,002 - 250 (212) - 6,040
Li & Fung Scholarship | A 2 4,014 - 198 (200) - 4,012
Others HoAt - - (29) 24 5 -
Total amount for the year N B E
2006/07 18,398 - 765 (809) 5 18,359
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12. Other funds 12, HfbX4

a Group %M
General and Other Donations
development operation and
reserve fund reserves benefactions Total
BREGARRE  HibEEGHE 0 & ] M
$’000 $’000 $’000 $’000
W T T T WwHT I
R-ZEHELA-HZ
Balance at 1 July 2005 foyed 567,680 94,915 15,643 678,238
Transfer from income and
expenditure statement LSl S 53,709 55,841 20,318 129,868
Inter-fund transfer (Note 11) %4 Wi (BfzE77) (631) 376 94 (161)
MREBEAREASA=ZTH
Balance at 30 June 2006 and KR _-ZEANHELH—H
at 1 July 2006 Z T 620,758 151,132 36,055 807,945
Transfer from income and
expenditure statement [LeJEN S 25,684 44,674 17,510 87,868
Inter-fund transfer (Note 77) FE 4 IR (M aE 1 7) (5,422) 1,339 (127) (4,210)
R-ZELEAA=TH
Balance at 30 June 2007 ZHEAT 641,020 197,145 53,438 891,603
Institute ¥kt
R-ZRHAELA—HZ
Balance at 1 July 2005 &1 567,680 90,862 15,643 674,185
Transfer from income and
expenditure statement LS g 53,709 54,564 20,318 128,591
Inter-fund transfer (Note 11)  J4x RAR (FaE11) (631) 376 94 (161)
MRE-BEREAA=1TH
Balance at 30 June 2006 and K _ZEAN4-LH—H
at 1 July 2006 ZHT 620,758 145,802 36,055 802,615
Transfer of funds to the HKIEd
SCPE T 5 RRAEAOR = (7,591) (265) (7,856)
Transfer from income and
expenditure staterment U H LR 25,684 42,818 17,481 85,983
Inter-fund transfer (Note 77) FE 4 IR (Mt aE 1 7) (5,422) 1,339 (127) (4,210)
R-ZZELEAA=Z1H
Balance at 30 June 2007 ZHETT 641,020 182,368 53,144 876,532
NG
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13.

Deferred capital funds

THE HONG KONG INSTITUTE OF EDUCATION % H £kt
(All amounts in Hong Kong dollars unless otherwise stated) (B3 G AN » B & 5L B 25 B ()

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS H# %5 #t 4< b 5i:

13. BHREEARES

P
Group M Institute # bt
2007 2006 2007 2006
$’000 $’000 $’000 $’000
W T T oo WwT T wIET o0
Balance at 1 July WEH—HZ&R 2,153,962 2,193,708 2,148,810 2,187,434
Representing: FHEH
Buildings M 2,102,932 2,145,242 2,099,627 2,141,863
Leasehold improvements T2 28,936 23,063 28,131 21,887
Fixtures and equipment H kA 22,094 25,403 21,052 23,684
2,153,962 2,193,708 2,148,810 2,187,434
Increase in capital funds earned B AL EEHE S 3 fin
Buildings T 4,259 5,143 4,259 5,143
Leasehold improvements iENERYE 301 15,964 10,516 15,964 10,516
Fixtures and equipment E IV 12,330 12,185 12,220 11,889
32,553 27,844 32,443 27,548
Release to income and R 3=
expenditure statement
Buildings HFE (47,596) (47,453) (47,522) (47,379)
Leasehold improvements ish=ey/E & 30 (8,439) (4,643) (8,068) (4,272)
Fixtures and equipment P& (11,893) (15,494) (11,219) (14,521)
(67,928) (67,590) (66,809) (66,172)
Balance at 30 June MAHZ1THZEE
Buildings HF 2,059,595 2,102,932 2,056,364 2,099,627
Leasehold improvements THEY S 36,461 28,936 36,027 28,131
Fixtures and equipment e B A 22,531 22,094 22,053 21,052
2,118,587 2,153,962 2,114,444 2,148,810
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Provision for employee benefits 14. R BREABM

p
Group and Institute
5 A F b
2007 2006
$/000 $'000
T T o0
Staff costs: & B LA
Compensation for loss of office R WAL R R 1,943 1,716
Unutilised annual leave AR ERI AR 33,192 65,800
Gratuities T 4 32,105 29,005
67,240 96,521
Payable: REATARIE
Within 1 year —4ER 50,672 84,567
After 1 year —AEfR 16,568 11,954
67,240 96,521
S
Borrowings 15. 3%
( .
Group and Institute
B
2007 2006
$’000 $’000
T T IT
Long-term loan, secured RAIE - AT 8,126 9,346
Less: Current portion classified as current assets T AR K 4 T ) (1,256) (1,220)
6,870 8,126
The maturity of long-term loan is as follows: RIS A R - $/000 5’000
T T IC
Within 1 year —4ER 1,256 1,220
Between 1 and 2 years —IEFE AR 1,294 1,256
Between 2 and 5 years TAERAAFN 4,120 4,000
Over 5 years FAELL E 1,456 2,870
8,126 9,346
A\

Note:  The HKSAR Government agreed to provide a loan of $15 million to the Institute to meet start-up costs of self-financing accredited
post-secondary programmes (e.g. Associate Degree Programmes). The loan is non-interest bearing, repayable in equal annual
installments over a period of 10 years from jJune 2004 and is secured by the Institute’s bank deposits of $15 million disclosed in Note 7.

The carrying values are based on cash flows discounted using a rate based on borrowings rate of 3.0% (2006: 3.0%) and all
denominated in Hong Kong dollars.

The fair value of borrowings approximates their carrying value for financial year ended 30 june 2007.

BFEE AR I T I R IR] 1o e H O W — T T TR AT 1A Y A T B R (BRI L R ) B PR o B
FIFLE - A F RIS A S AR AR RAOE - U BB 8 W — T 1 B TR T AR A B AT - Q0 ak 7 s o

R T (E AR IR B 5 7 12 LA FE AR 33,00 ( ZFFENAE « 3.00) i BIaTH » 2ESLAB T 2 BT -

BEZFFCENH =1 HILBAERE - B30 oV (B SR ] (E A
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)) THE HONG KONG INSTITUTE OF EDUCATION F#s % H £ 5¢
(All amounts in Hong Kong dollars unless otherwise stated) (Br7AA# IS¢ » BT & AL 25 B A7)

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS i %5 # 3 b 5i:

16. Accounts payable and accruals 16. WA M I B2 B ) k0w
a .
Group %M Institute #Bi
2007 2006 2007 2006
$’000 $’000 $’000 S’000
T 0 e o T o T
Accounts payable TEATARIE 29,872 20,995 25,288 19,544
Accruals JREF R TE 30,737 26,390 28,999 26,377
Amount due to a subsidiary JEAST BB A ] 2 3
(Note a) (Bf7EH) - - 7,399 -
Receipts in advance TEYCERIAE 21,824 16,125 21,171 16,114
82,433 63,510 82,857 62,035
N
The fair value of accounts payable and accruals BEZZLER EENFESNA=ZT
approximates their carrying values for both financial years H 1F 7 {0 B BU4E B MEAST B IE K ME S 3Kk
ended 30 June 2007 and 2006. T 23 T8 B HR T {E AR o

Note a: The amount due is unsecured, interest bearing ranging from 2.75% to 3% and payable on demand.
Btk c ML SR IE AR AT LB H12.75% 2 3% N5 » RIAFLHEAIEHE -

17. Deferred income 17. BB
: .
Group % Institute ki
2007 2006 2007 2006
$/000 S’000 $’000 S’000
L W w0 T ko R
Balance at 1 July WEH—HZ&ERF 87,066 65,279 87,066 65,279
Subventions, grants and
donations received/ EL i/ B 13K~
receivable T B4 S4B 705,042 690,702 694,326 680,545
Recognised during the year AAEEEANR (601,080) (641,071) (590,474) (631,210)
Transferred to deferred
capital funds R E AR (32,553) (27,844) (32,443) (27,548)
Balance at 30 June MAA=1THZER 158,475 87,066 158,475 87,066
Group and Institute
B A b
2007 2006
$’000 S’000
b3 T b T
Balance representing: FEERHANT
Earmarked grants e E RN
- Research - fF5E 3,699 2,941
- Others - HAth 149,725 81,936
Capital grants and Alterations,
Additions, Repairs and FEER A K B -
Improvements block #H e ks TR
allocation R B 2,461 627
Grants from government
agencies UM B 2,590 1,562
Total k] 158,475 87,066
N
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18. Government subventions

18. WX

‘ Group M Institute #bt
2007 2006 2007 2006
$’000 S’000 $’000 S’000
b3 W ok A b3 T ko R
Subventions from UGC E8cagi e
Block / Recurrent grants Tl /R K 435,663 462,496 435,663 462,496
Earmarked grants TREREK 91,849 104,958 91,849 104,958
Home Finance Scheme JE T Bl 36,973 40,580 36,973 40,580
Matching grant SR B R K 21,799 30,717 21,799 30,717
Replacement Town Centre AL 9,591 8,825 9,591 8,825
Earmarked for pension top-up  #&EHifEAKSE 6,062 7,263 6,062 7,263
Earmarked language
immersion programmes TR TSR 6,546 6,510 6,546 6,510
Matching grant for
internationalising the B N B B AL SRR
student population iR 2,185 1,569 2,185 1,569
Research projects R IEE 2,314 2,413 2,314 2,413
Teaching Development Grant
projects B R G 207 1,214 207 1,214
Institutional advancement
projects eI e # 402 1,666 402 1,666
Housing-related benefits other 3k /& fit & B st #1 2 |5 )2
than Home Finance Scheme AHBH 3 H 1,069 1,436 1,069 1,436
Restructuring and collaboration  f# & A 1FHE 4 — i
fund — academic restructure HAL 3,940 1,361 3,940 1,361
Restructuring and collaboration — ®# & A1ERESE - FH
fund - library link FEiA = 387 = 387
Other earmarked grants HoAth s 2K 761 1,017 761 1,017
Government rent and rates
refund 78 0] i % 25 A 7,321 7,083 7,321 7,083
Capital grants and Alterations,
Additions, Repairs and H @B L BE -
Improvements block A R TR
allocation STk 53,060 53,114 53,060 53,114
587,893 627,651 587,893 627,651
Grants from government
agencies BT B8R 63,610 48,058 43,038 38,232
651,503 675,709 630,931 665,883

i BOH B Be 2006/2007 11 75 i 4
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)) THE HONG KONG INSTITUTE OF EDUCATION F#s % H £ 5¢
(All amounts in Hong Kong dollars unless otherwise stated) (B3 A #MISF - Brg & RELL B 1 23 5 07)

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS i %5 # 3 b 5i:

19. Tuition, programmes and other fees 19. 5% - MR BCE
4
Group % Institute #ki
2007 2006 2007 2006
$’000 S’000 $’000 S’000
EW T T i T T
UGC - funded programmes Ba s
Tuition fee H 135,131 138,835 135,131 138,835
Programmes and other fees PR B HoAt i 2 7,211 4,240 7,211 4,240
Non UGC - funded programmes  J:# % € & B af %
Tuition fee 2 66,430 55,861 17,997 49,885
Programmes and other fees AR B oAt Wi 2 13,555 10,162 7,256 10,162
222,327 209,098 167,595 203,122
N
20. Other gains - net 20. JHfblcsz - B
4
Group M Institute # bt
2007 2006 2007 2006
$’000 S’000 $’000 S’000
b T W TIT Lo T W T
e 1 0N 18 51 iR
Investment gain/(loss) from B il s b F
financial assets at fair value IR A5 R A A
through profit or loss Wets/ (k1) 6,599 (4,623) 6,599 (4,623)
Interest income FLE A 45,559 35,367 45,166 35,257
52,158 30,744 51,765 30,634

N
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21.

Donations and benefactions 21. HXKLHY

P
Group M Institute # bt
2007 2006 2007 2006
$’000 S’000 $’000 S’000
L T T WwHT T T
Capital projects HAEHE 2,690 5,634 2,690 5,634
Scholarships, prizes and RELG - BERMB RS
bursaries (Note a) (KL H ) 2,040 2,399 1,980 2,399
Donations for academic SR BRI I ) 14 45 K
activities (Note a) (BffFEHH) 22,820 24,918 21,682 23,466
27,550 32,951 26,352 31,499
N\

Note a: The HKSAR Government has launched the Second and Third Matching Scheme for UGC-funded institutions to match grants for the
donations secured by them. Donations pledged and paid to the Institute between August 2005 and February 2006 and between
July 2006 and March 2007 respectively are eligible for such matching grants.

FRFFE I < 7 A A T B T 4 1 20 O A BB RS R 25 — IR AE =5 B Bl ), LASF B BB R AT A9 - E _FFRFE/\H £
FENEZ AW R ZFFNFELHA EZFFTLAEZH RIS 5B 185 6 4 s g i S B 2 -

As at 30 June 2007, the related income and expenditure BEZZEHLFENA=ZTHIE RS
incurred for the donations eligible for matching grants are SEMPESEEMBSNER, HAAH
shown below: WA B FEE T
( .
Group and Institute
PR
2007 2006
$’000 S’000
b3 T ko R
Balance at 1 July W-EH—HmEF 38,263 14,038
Income A
Donations received [BALEEE 21,817 30,717
Interest income FLE WA 2,901 378
24,718 31,095
Expenditure S
Academic development BLhi 5% 4,815 3,517
Research activities BFFEIEE) 246 586
Student activities B TR E) 821 1,387
Scholarships and prizes S GAE S 1,580 858
Bursaries IR 2 1,285 473
Equipment and supplies R B AL 88 38
Staff development g3 - 1
8,835 6,870
Balance at 30 June MAH=ETHIEE 54,146 38,263
N\

i BOH B Be 2006/2007 11 75 i &



)) THE HONG KONG INSTITUTE OF EDUCATION Fi#s 8 H £ 5¢
(All amounts in Hong Kong dollars unless otherwise stated) (B3 G AN » B & 5L B 25 B ()

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS H# %5 #t 4< b 5i:

21. Donations and benefactions (Continued) 21. HEKEEB @
As at 30 June 2007, the related income and expenditure BEZZEESNA=STHIE - &5
incurred for the matching grants are shown below: Bh 4 AR B YR A B S RS T
4 .
Group and Institute
U PR
2007 2006
$’000 $’000
W T T
Balance at 1 July W-EH—HWERE 51,029 20,926
Income A
Matching grants received and receivable 5 WA R B M B 14 6 A A 0 21,817 30,717
Interest income FE WA 2,817 -
24,634 30,717
Expenditure S
Academic development L4 3,185 118
Research activities WFFEIEE) 743 258
Student activities B ) 293 238
Scholarships and prizes BEGME S 1,096 =
Equipment and supplies A e L 78 -
5,395 614
Balance at 30 June RAH=ZTHER 70,268 51,029
N\
22. Aukxiliary services 22. WBRE
a
Group £ H Institute # bt
2007 2006 2007 2006
$’000 S’000 $’000 S’000
b3 T T WwHT T T
Student hostels B TR 17,735 14,780 17,735 14,780
Rental income LA N
- Operating lease - EEE 962 1,440 962 1,440
- Others - Hth 1,875 2,880 6,672 2,877
Rental contribution from staff  {g B/ &4k 2,227 2,173 2,227 2,173
Others HoAl 456 140 453 140
23,255 21,413 28,049 21,410
\
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23. Expenditure 23. %l

p
2007 Group %M
Employee
benefits Operating
expenses expenses Depreciation Total
1 B %A B X B X Vil Bz
$'000 $’000 $’000 $’000
T I T Tt Wi T
(Note 24)
(KfzE24)
Learning and research HERWSE
Instruction and research BB K5 415,694 85,145 2,809 503,648
Library e S 20,382 15,696 519 36,597
Central computing facilities  Hr e B it 30,118 22,012 4,065 56,195
Other academic services At 200 AR A5 34,451 5,477 61 39,989
500,645 128,330 7,454 636,429
(Note 23a)
Institutional support Hbe X % (Mf7E23H)
Management and general — AT R B 47,480 18,093 89 65,662
Premises and related
expenses 52 i Sk I BH = 26,562 73,844 60,094 160,500
Students and general
education services B T — R RS 14,836 18,399 67 33,302
88,878 110,336 60,250 259,464
Total expenditure 2007 ZERFLAE IS 589,523 238,666 67,704 895,893
2006 Group %
Learning and research BA Rk
Instruction and research B E Y% 405,990 64,671 5,875 476,536
Library [ S i 18,879 14,080 427 33,386
Central computing facilities  HrJe Bt 28,312 18,331 5,352 51,995
Other academic services At B2 A 5 32,620 5,347 95 38,062
485,801 102,429 11,749 599,979
(Note 23a)
Institutional support Hb X% (MfaE23H)
Management and general — AT A B 46,633 8,479 85 55,197
Premises and related
expenses A% 4 Ko AF B B S 26,263 77,915 57,909 162,087
Students and general
education services B T — R RS 13,730 13,756 42 27,528
86,626 100,150 58,036 244,812
Total expenditure 2006 ZERBNEL IS 572,427 202,579 69,785 844,791
NS
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)) THE HONG KONG INSTITUTE OF EDUCATION F#E# & 2%

(All amounts in Hong Kong dollars unless otherwise stated) (B3 G AN » B & 5L B 25 B ()
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS A % & Kt 5k

23. Expenditure (Continued) 23. X
e -
2007 Institute #be
Employee
benefits Operating
expenses expenses Depreciation Total
1 i #8 A BH 52 BIER Uil Hag
$’000 $’000 $’000 $’000
BT BT i TH il TH
(Note 24)
(HfaE 24)
Learning and research BOA R WF5E
Instruction and research BRI 402,756 58,719 1,338 462,813
Library T S i 20,382 15,696 519 36,597
Central computing facilities o R B Rt 30,118 22,012 4,065 56,195
Other academic services oAt 200 AR 5 34,451 5,477 61 39,989
487,707 101,904 5,983 595,594
(Note 23a)
Institutional support Fbe X % (BfaE23H)
Management and general — AT B R A 47,480 19,323 89 66,892
Premises and related
expenses e A B BH 52 26,562 72,253 60,022 158,837
Students and general
education services A Fo— BRI 14,836 18,338 67 33,241
88,878 109,914 60,178 258,970
Total expenditure 2007 It SRS T 576,585 211,818 66,161 854,564
2006 Institute bt
Learning and research BHE KB
Instruction and research BB R 393,729 62,942 4,382 461,053
Library I A 18,879 14,080 427 33,386
Central computing facilities LT SRR it 28,312 18,331 5,352 51,995
Other academic services HAbER il R B 32,620 5,347 95 38,062
473,540 100,700 10,256 584,496
(Note 23a)
Institutional support b X% (BfaE23H)
Management and general — AT B R A P 46,633 8,256 85 54,974
Premises and related
expenses e A B BH 32 26,263 76,669 57,835 160,767
Students and general
education services AL Fo— BRI 13,730 13,756 42 27,528
86,626 98,681 57,962 243,269
Total expenditure 2006 TERRNL A 560,166 199,381 68,218 827,765

&
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23.

(a)

Expenditure (Continued) 23. Xk
Analysis of operating expenses - Institutional support (H) B 0T - B i
( .
Group M Institute # Bt
2007 2006 2007 2006
$’000 S’000 $’000 S’000
W T e W T BT
Management and general —BRATBOR B B
Office expenses WEAZE B 6,713 3,943 8,112 3,908
Professional and legal fees B T kA 9,425 2,932 9,425 2,917
General insurance — R RBE 909 968 808 857
Auditors’ remuneration % BT 42 623 432 555 370
Minor equipment INEU R ARG 423 204 423 204
18,093 8,479 19,323 8,256
Premises and related expenses % & K Hi i #
Utilities 2 it 17,706 17,010 17,265 16,558
Repair and maintenance and Ml - (R /R
minor works TF2 21,741 24,124 21,436 23,836
Premises rental A4 8,990 12,479 8,685 12,479
Government rent and rates Z 4 e AR 7,808 7,553 7,376 7,135
Cleaning services TR 5,918 5,771 5,853 5,705
Security services PR IR HS 5,725 6,162 5,725 6,162
Office expenses WA= S 3,616 2,480 3,616 2,480
Telecommunications Eik- il 903 892 860 870
Minor equipment IR A 624 628 624 628
Property insurance LEE 388 391 388 391
Notional rental for staff quarters 1§ B 1& % 119 4 2t 4 425 425 425 425
73,844 77,915 72,253 76,669
Student and general education B4R —BBH R
services
Student hostels expenses LA TR 8,594 7,012 8,594 7,012
Health care centre B L 2,436 2,880 2,436 2,880
Scholarship, bursaries and prizes ~ #&8:4: - BiEREH
to students B ARG 5,282 2,591 5,221 2,591
Extra-curricular activities PRANMEE 1,053 778 1,053 778
Office expenses PN E B 771 429 771 429
Others HoAthy 263 66 263 66
18,399 13,756 18,338 13,756

i BOH BBt 2006/2007 1 75 &
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)) THE HONG KONG INSTITUTE OF EDUCATION F#s % H £ 5¢
(All amounts in Hong Kong dollars unless otherwise stated) (Bi3 Gt HHAN » Bra & 5L B 25 B ()

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS i %5 # 3 b 5i:

24. Employee benefits expenses 24. REB®mABZ
g .
Group M Institute # bt
2007 2006 2007 2006
$’000 $’000 $’000 S’000
W0 wHET o0 b3 T bk o BT
Wages and salaries T K 458,415 456,215 445,819 444125
Unutilised annual leave RS BUAEAR 14,366 (8,252) 14,366 (8,252)
Gratuities IR 4 22,692 21,051 22,692 21,051
Contributions to MPF scheme Ti S 4 ) 2 bRk 8,401 7,640 8,059 7,469
Contributions to superannuation
scheme AR AT 2 fkk 30,440 34,251 30,440 34,251
Compensation for loss of office ek > Hifk 228 4,265 228 4,265
Housing benefits 5 2 A8 39,617 43,442 39,617 43,442
Other staff related benefits oAb 5k B AR A 15,364 13,815 15,364 13,815
589,523 572,427 576,585 560,166
AN
(@)  Higher paid staff (F) m#REE
Total annual equivalent emoluments irrespective of the FEE BN TEHEHAERNEREES R
funding sources for the higher paid staff are analysed VEANAT) ATt
as follows:
4 .
Group and Institute
48 B fu g e
2007 2006
$’000 S’000
WwHT 0 bk o R
Basic salaries, housing allowances, other
allowances and benefits in kind JEFT - R, - HAth R B R i 10,710 13,228
AN
The above emoluments fell within the following bands: Sy G B i (T N
p
Number of staff
RE¥H
2007 2006
Emoluments bands P 4 471
$1,800,001 - $1,950,000 1,800,0001%JC — 1,950,000% I 3 2
$1,950,001 - $2,100,000 1,950,0001#57 - 2,100,000#5 70 o 1
$2,100,001 - $2,250,000 2,100,0001# 78 — 2,250,000% 7t 1 1
$2,250,001 - $2,400,000 2,250,0001%# 7T - 2,400,000% 70 = 1
$2,400,001 - $2,550,000 2,400,0001#JG - 2,550,000%5 76 - -
$2,550,001 - $2,700,000 2,550,0001#7T - 2,700,000% 7T -
$2,700,001 - $2,850,000 2,700,0001# 7% - 2,850,000 75 S -
$2,850,001 - $3,000,000 2,850,0001#7T - 3,000,000% 7T 1 1
5 6
AN
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24.

(b)

25.

Employee benefits expenses (Continued) 24. Mg BRwA B a0

Key management personnel compensation

The key management of the Group and the Institute
refers to those senior management having authority
and responsibility for planning, directing and controlling

(2)  FZEHNAE M

the activities of the Group and the Institute and their

compensations are analysed as follows:

AR M LA BIRAHES
FOSAEAREE - 4 A £ ) 42 1 0 205 1
B ESEHAR - LM

P
Group and Institute
B E T
2007 2006
$’000 S’000
b3 T bk o R
Salaries, wages and allowances T - ARG 9,534 9,403
Employer’s contribution to retirement schemes fi@ F= iR AR B R 59 60
Provision for gratuities and unutilised annual leave 43 & A Rk SCBUE (B M 1,138 974
10,731 10,437
S
Finance cost 25. WA
e .
Group and Institute
S Fn B
2007 2006
$’000 S’000
W T T
Discounting effect on borrowings KI5 R 280 316
Discounting effect on financial assets S A R LA SR - 1
280 407

N

Tl BOH BBt 2006/2007 1 75 i &

47



48

»

26.

(@)

(b)

27.

THE HONG KONG INSTITUTE OF EDUCATION & #s#UH 25

(All amounts in Hong Kong dollars unless otherwise stated) (Bi3 Gt HHAN » Bra & 5L B 25 B ()

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS i %5 # 3 b 5i:

Notes to consolidated cash flow statement 26. 5434 EBFN=
Cash generated from operations (F) BEEENSR e
p
2007 2006
Note $/000 5’000
Btk bl T T
Surplus for the year AR PERL R 87,829 129,833
Adjustments for: R
Depreciation s 4 67,704 69,785
Loss on disposal of property, plant and equipment — Hi#E42 « 34 & B b 1R 848 40
Fe 0N P 51 MR BB il R
Fair value gain on financial assets at fair value o B 11 B 5 T ) A ST (B
through profit or loss [hE 20 (6,599) 4,623
Interest income FLEMA 20 (45,559) (35,367)
Finance cost B A 25 280 407
Exchange differences [ 326 % (1,777) 485
Changes in working capital: B S 5EE)
Accounts receivable, deposits and prepayments — BEIIRIE ~ 24 M T 50E 13,385 15,593
Provision of employee benefits 1 545 3 (29,281) (146,646)
Accounts payable and accruals JEAST FR T 2 R & T 18,923 8,886
Deferred income EIEUTA 71,409 21,787
Deferred capital funds A G A4 (35,375) (39,746)
Cash generated from operations BHEEENB A 141,787 29,680
S
In the cash flow statement, the disposal of property, plant  (2,) ZEBR&RBIE > HEWE - L LBH
and equipment is analysed as follows: AT
e
2007 2006
Note $’000 S’000
Wit i T b T
Net book amount TR T ¥ R 4 874 65
Loss on the disposal & (848) (40)
Proceeds from the disposal & Bk 26 25
AN
Capital commitments 27. BEARKIE

As at 30 June 2007, the Institute had capital commitments
on leasehold improvements, furniture and fixtures as follows:

AERBLAERNAZTH . AT
PR~ FH RO B EAORIEIT

e

Group and Institute

£ W A F b
2007 2006
$’000 S’000
WwHT T BT
Contracted but not provided for EL R A E R B 10,163 21,509
Authorised but not contracted for BRI EF R ¥:0) 2,720 8,386
12,883 29,895
L
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28. Commitments under operating leases 28. BHMEZKIE
(@) As at 30 June 2007, the Institute had future aggregate () R - BE-LESA=+TH > HEERIET
minimum lease payments under non-cancellable [ 43 16 22 A B T 4 4 P S 2 o B e fI%
operating leases in respect of town centre as follows: FEMRABENT
: .
Group and Institute
LR E
2007 2006
$/000 $'000
wHT T BT
Within one year —4ER 8,040 5,640
After one year but no later than five years B_EERER 9,380 18,720
17,420 24,360
Operating lease charges for the year AR B A B S 7,688 9,474
(S
(b)  As at 30 June 2007, the Institute had future aggregate  (Z) MRFEE-LEANH=1TH - HEEAREHR

minimum lease receipts under operating leases in respect
of rental properties as follows:

S04 2 S T L R A
WS

e

Group and Institute

FERE (T
2007 2006
$’000 $’000
BT b T
Within one year —4ER 585 574
After one year but no later than five years BB HEN 154 122
739 696
N

Contingent-based rent recognised during the year was $2K
(2006: $517K).

TE A BE ARSI SR A & Sl W — T
To (RN i —EET o) -

T BOH B Be 2006/2007 11 75 i &
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)) THE HONG KONG INSTITUTE OF EDUCATION F#s % & 2%

(All amounts in Hong Kong dollars unless otherwise stated) (Bi3 Gt HHAN » Bra & 5L B 25 B ()

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS i %5 # 3 b 5i:

29. Related party transactions

Other than those disclosed in Notes 4(b), 8, 16 and 24(b)
to the consolidated financial statements, the Institute
undertook the following significant transactions with the
HKIEd SCPE during the year:

(@)  Commitment under operating leases
Included in Note 28(a), certain operating lease rentals for

office premises of the HKIEd will be absorbed by the HKIEd
SCPE for its use as follows:

29.

BHIBR )5 38 %)
B T4 A MM EME4(2) 816 K&

24(2) Pl g b > Bt 4F N g BLRF AT
HEBHET FIIERZL )

B EK

E

M EE28 () HBEn A THEEES
YL 3t P A 2 R I R L B P
AEWT

p
Group and Institute
R b
2007 2006
$’000 S’000
T T
Within one year —4ER 2,343
After one year but no later than five years BB IEN 2,734
5,077
(S
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29. Related party transactions (Continued)

29. BT 5 0

Other transactions (&) HAthzzs
e
2007 2006
Note $’000 S’000
o3 BT b T
Interest expense FLEBA 32 (a) (95) -
Office expenses under “Institutional support” BN 2R E 3245 | IR A 25 B 52
- Service fee expenses related to contribution
to the Institute’s scholarly activities, fund- - BRZBR 0 ELATIHE) « ZE30EB)
raising activities and the development of I BE A BH 5 A B R IR s 2
the blueprint sz (b) (1,500) -
I TBH BT | R A =
Office expenses under “Learning and research” B sz
- Service fee to printing unit - BT DR B LA IR S (© (500) -
Service and management fee income 5 B B A
- Staff cost recharged for human resources - BEA U SR R AR B
support %N (d) 24,040 =
- Outsourced teaching fee income and - AN BB RN T AT B
administrative fee income YA (e) 5,809 =
Rental income IR ON (" 4,818 -
Library card income [ R A (g) 125 -
A\
Note:
(3) Interest expense was charged at the rate ranging from 2.75% to 3% on the amount due to the HKIEd SCPE.
b) Service fee expenses related to contribution to the Institute’s scholarly activities, fund-raising activities and the development of the
blueprint were charged in accordance with the terms mutually agreed by both parties.
(c) Service fee to printing unit was charged in accordance with the terms mutually agreed by both parties.
(d) Staff cost was recharged at actual cost of seconded staff.
(e) Outsourced teaching fee income was charged in accordance with the terms mutually agreed by both parties. Outsourced
administrative fee income was charged at actual cost incurred.
() Rental income was charged in accordance with the terms mutually agreed by both parties.
(9) Library card income was charged in accordance with the terms mutually agreed by both parties.
Pt

(Z)  BEBERY AT B ~ Sk B R0 B A A B 09 I B 2 B S TS AR 12 B Oy [y e e skl R

() FLE B HME N AR S 2 SR L2, 759 52 3% F %t 5 o

(1) AT ETURRBE £ 09 IR B 2 75 W95 2 T i ) e A B

(T)  (EE AR5 B 09 BT AR ]

() SRR EER LA TI AR Ty 1k Y R U o SPFURGFT B ERALA 12 3E  H EL B A st

(C)  HBYCATIRIEE Ty e 1 SKH IR

(B8)  EEE A TIARSE Ty I A9 TR

W BOH BB 2006/2007 1 75 &
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)) THE HONG KONG INSTITUTE OF EDUCATION F#s % H £ 5¢
(All amounts in Hong Kong dollars unless otherwise stated) (Br7AA# IS¢ » BT & AL 25 B A7)

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS H %5 #t 3< b 5i:

29. BHBRIT 25 0

29. Related party transactions (Continued)
() Net assets transfer () P&

A R I GRS B iR - BB —F
TANFELHA— HIRE FE > M EE -
B N AR BT BT

As disclosed in Note 5 to the financial statements, the funds,
assets and liabilities transferred to the HKIEd SCPE at the
Institute’s net book value as at 1 July 2006 are as follows:

52
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N

$’000
W T o0
ASSETS BE
Non-current assets FE B

Property, plant and equipment W~ Rl KA 357
Current assets )

Sundry deposits METE A 123

Tuition fees and accounts receivable, net B2 T RN TR T 4R 6,346

Current account with the HKIEd SCPE B A e B B Y B R P 3,453
Total assets 7 HR 10,279
FUNDS “&

Reserves fitft 7,856
Total funds B 7,856
LIABILITIES 1%

Current liabilities E A

Accounts payable and accruals JREASS BRI e E w3 T 2,124

Fees in advance TESCE 299
Total funds and liabilities 4 B AR 10,279




» Trustee’s Report {576 A#Hi 4

THE HONG KONG INSTITUTE OF EDUCATION SUPERANNUATION SCHEME

TRUSTEE’S REPORT

BBHE R AR S #

fEREANERE

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 30 JUNE 2007 #ZE_=FZLENH=FHILER

The trustee presents its annual report and the financial statements
of The Hong Kong Institute of Education Superannuation Scheme
(“the Scheme”) for the year ended 30th June 2007.

Introduction

The Scheme was established on 1st September 1995 to provide
benefits on retirement, death, ill-health and termination of
employment to its members. It was registered under the Hong
Kong Occupational Retirement Schemes Ordinance (“ORSO”) on 12th

December 1995.

There are two classes of members namely Scheme A members and
Scheme B members. Scheme A is a hybrid benefit arrangement
and is a combination of defined benefits and accumulation benefits.
Scheme B is a defined contribution type of arrangement. A factor
called the Scheme A Benefit Factor (which is determined by the
Actuary from time to time) is used in calculating the benefits of
Scheme A members. The trustee, in consultation with the Actuary
of the Scheme considers that, by application of the Scheme A
Benefit Factor as defined under the Trust Deed, the Scheme will

always remain solvent.

There were 246 members at the end of June 2007. Total
contributions paid and payable into the Scheme during the year
ended 30th June 2007 amounted to HKS$22 million. Of this,
members and employer contributed at the rate of 5% and 15% of
the members’ salaries respectively.

The assets of the Scheme were invested in Sub-Funds of the Allianz
Global Investors Choice Fund including RCM Balanced Fund (Ordinary
Class = A), RCM Capital Stable Fund (Ordinary Class — A), RCM Growth
Fund (Ordinary Class — A), RCM Stable Growth Fund (Ordinary Class
- A), RCM HKS Liquidity Fund (Ordinary Class) and Absolute Return
Fund (Ordinary Class — A). The assets of the Scheme were also
invested in Sub-Funds of the Fidelity Advantage Portfolio Fund
(Ordinary Units) including Balanced Fund, Capital Stable Fund, Growth
Fund, Stable Growth Fund and US Dollar Money Fund. Fidelity
Advantage Portfolio Fund is a unit trust established as an umbrella
fund managed by Fidelity International Limited. The net asset value
of the Scheme as at 30th June 2007 was HKS365 million.

On 11th August 2006, Scheme A was wound up and all its members
transferred their account balances to Scheme B.

TWHE R AR (LUT @ [ A5
B DRERABRELEE —FFEHEAH
= BRSSP B R -

5%
AFHER — UILIAE LA — H G > B2

[ O PANS S 73 P2 SR =4 G o 9 & 47
BE o AFHFICA— ULIAE A+ HAR
B R SEB IR R B (LT fiTAE CRARET
FIGRBI) BOBLRN > 52 T M F4 -

Aut # B B Sy WRE > B E R R B T
B A - FHEPERSEAG®E > 1y T
W E A 4 R 2 AR A RS2y o R 2 WE
TEPEERETE] o FERTE B H A AR A
& PR B S S R (G H R R AR
RFEAE ) o fF WETE B AS S 30K S R 2
FARRR Ry HR A5 wE A 2 A
ARECAFIFE > AT AT — B PR 250 0 fik
AAAae S -

WEZZFLFEANA =T HIE  AgHILs
ZHMTAARE - fEFFTEFEAA =T
H &SI - O B REAT i B
ST AElT - AMEE R FHENT
G2 T TR E R I A B e T )
ZtH .

A ] 1 T R A N 78 R < ) R
& ORENEES (FE - A) - BEEARE

aCERmEAIA) ~ BIREES (B@EHAA) - ?”é
ﬂii"%ﬁ/\ HEEAIA) - BT EI RS

AL RA R H R[] R 4 (I B A)
$ﬁ%%§%%&§<méﬁiﬁﬁﬁég
& () B A > AN ES - BA
TRERE - WRES PRI RESMET
BES - gEERREHAESR —HE
TREMFEES > HEERBEEGRARE
i o R REBLHFENAZTH > AFHEINE
FEFE 2 ST H A s -

FEBHCE —FEANENA+— AR

LT B T LR T 4G B A = R
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THE HONG KONG INSTITUTE OF EDUCATION SUPERANNUATION SCHEME
TRUSTEE’S REPORT

BHBBHERAHEFE

fEREAH

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 30 JUNE 2007 #E_=FFEHFENH=+HILEE

Trustee IERIN

HSBC Institutional Trust Services (Asia) Limited, the trustee, is [ 5E A\ MELWHERE(E SRS (BEN) AR AT &
responsible for the administration and investment policy of  FHARF#IH)E M LI EBEK o
the Scheme.

Membership % B

Membership of the Scheme is a condition of employment for all ~ JLiA —fLLT4E LA — A 8 AR IR AR E &
employees hired on superannuable terms on or after 1st September  ZT I 1 AR 142 2 T RS 5800 T f IR
1995 who have not elected to join the MPF Scheme. B WEIMAARGE -

Membership of the Scheme is optional for employees who FERIE—NAFENLA —HIKLIBHATE
transferred to the Institute from the Civil Service subject to the  BEERZ e 7 GRIR BRAMGER) (FHEE &
Pensions (Special Provisions) (The Hong Kong Institute of Education) &) &) {REAIE & > BIINAASTH S B 53R
Ordinance (“Pension (Special) Ordinance”) on or after 1st September  BEHFE o M H A OB BH AR IR EF3#E
1995. Only those who opted for the Frozen Pension Scheme would 5 ] l{ A 4wt 31 & -

be eligible to become members of the Scheme.

An analysis of the number of members is as follows: T A% BB H AT
Active members at beginning of the year AR JE R AR IRF 1Y LB 256
New member joining AR B 2
Members leaving prior to retirement AR VAR e B 8 1) (10)
Retired members R IRI R E )
Active members at end of the year A BE AR AL IR IR 246
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Actuarial Position

At 30th June 2007 the Scheme’s Scheme A Benefit Factor (as defined
in the Deed of Variation dated 30th April 1998) was estimated to be
100% based on a Benefit Factor valuation performed as at 30th April
2005. The last actuarial valuation as at 8th August 2006 indicated
by letter of 10th August 2006 that the Scheme was solvent at

that date.

Officers and Advisors

Employer:

Trustee:

Scheme administrator:

Actuary:

Auditors:

Enquiries:

The Hong Kong Institute of Education

HSBC Institutional Trust Services (Asia)
Limited

HSBC Institutional Trust Services (Asia)
Limited

Towers Perrin Forster & Crosby Inc.

PricewaterhouseCoopers
Certified Public Accountants

Any enquiry regarding the Scheme should
be addressed to:

HSBC Institutional Trust Services (Asia)
Limited

No.1 Queen'’s Road, Central

Hong Kong

For and on behalf of the Trustee,
HSBC Institutional Trust Services (Asia) Limited
Hong Kong, 5th December 2007

W SR IR DL
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3 Auditiors’ Report 4 8 ifi #t #4

INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT

TO THE TRUSTEE OF THE HONG KONG INSTITUTE OF EDUCATION SUPERANNUATION SCHEME (THE’ SCHEME")

0 S A SR
BORWEE BB AR A (AT DETEA

We have audited the financial statements of the Scheme set
out on pages 58 to 71, which comprise the statement of assets
and liabilities as at 30th June 2007, and the revenue statement,
statement of movement in capital account and cash flow statement
for the year then ended, and a summary of significant accounting
policies and other explanatory notes.

Trustee’s responsibility for the financial statements

The Trustee of the Scheme is responsible for the preparation and
the true and fair presentation of these financial statements in
accordance with Hong Kong Financial Reporting Standards issued by
the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants and the Hong
Kong Occupational Retirement Schemes Ordinance (the “ORSQ”).
This responsibility includes designing, implementing and maintaining
internal control relevant to the preparation and the true and fair
presentation of financial statements that are free from material
misstatement, whether due to fraud or error; selecting and applying
appropriate accounting policies; and making accounting estimates
that are reasonable in the circumstances.

Auditor’s responsibility

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on these financial
statements based on our audit and to report our opinion solely to
you, as a body, in accordance with section 20 of the ORSO, and for
no other purpose. We do not assume responsibility towards or
accept liability to any other person for the contents of this report.

We conducted our audit in accordance with Hong Kong Standards
on Auditing and with reference to Practice Note 860.1 “The audit of
retirement schemes” issued by the Hong Kong Institute of Certified
Public Accountants. Those standards require that we comply with
ethical requirements and plan and perform the audit to obtain
reasonable assurance as to whether the financial statements are
free from material misstatement.

The Hong Kong Institute of Education Financial Report 2006 /2007
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An audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence
about the amounts and disclosures in the financial statements. The
procedures selected depend on the auditor’s judgement, including
the assessment of the risks of material misstatement of the financial
statements, whether due to fraud or error. In making those risk
assessments, the auditor considers internal control relevant to the
Scheme’s preparation and true and fair presentation of the financial
statements in order to design audit procedures that are appropriate
in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an
opinion on the effectiveness of the Scheme’s internal control. An
audit also includes evaluating the appropriateness of accounting
policies used and the reasonableness of accounting estimates made
by the Trustee, as well as evaluating the overall presentation of the
financial statements.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient
and appropriate to provide a basis for our audit opinion.

Opinion

In our opinion the financial statements give a true and fair view of the
disposition of the assets and liabilities of the Scheme as at 30th june
2007 and of its financial transactions and cash flows for the year then
ended in accordance with Hong Kong Financial Reporting Standards.

PricewaterhouseCoopers
Certified Public Accountants
Hong Kong, 5th December 2007
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)) THE HONG KONG INSTITUTE OF EDUCATION SUPERANNUATION SCHEME F## & L AR &5 #
(All amounts in Hong Kong dollars unless otherwise stated) (BRI A #BISF » B s BHLL S B 24 B A7)

STATEMENT OF ASSETS AND LIABILITIES &EffEF*R

P
As at 30 June WA/SH=1H
2007 2006
Note HKS$ HKS
ASSETS & E
Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss &/ - EF R /5 18 it 45 3 b ) B 4
G 365,300,326 296,613,413
Accounts and other receivables JRE Mg AR T % EL A R ARk T 197,827 1,162
Cash at banks RITAEEK 1,367,812 588,027
Total assets R 366,865,965 297,202,602
LIABILITIES £
Accounts payable JEA RRIE 2,232,490 1,034,757
Net assets available for benefits attributable to 7 i % sk B & F i) & 2 54
members 364,633,475 296,167,845
Represented by: &R
Scheme A members’ balances w18 A B A A - 214,433,387
Scheme B members’ balances GiE (P d=Tib oy e 364,633,475 81,734,458
364,633,475 296,167,845
_
For and on behalf of the Trustee, RFFFEA

HSBC Institutional Trust Services (Asia) Limited

The notes on pages 62 to 71 are an integral part of these financial statements.
AN B LA — HE R A BB AR A 1
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)) THE HONG KONG INSTITUTE OF EDUCATION SUPERANNUATION SCHEME F## & 25 AR &5l #
(All amounts in Hong Kong dollars unless otherwise stated) (BRI A #BIAF » i 4 BELL S B 23 B A7)

REVENUE STATEMENT g ts3%

Year ended 30th June
BENH=THIEFE

N

2007 2006
Note HKS$ HKS
Investment income BEWA
Interest on cash deposits TEFA B 39,039 22,840
Net unrealised gains on financial assets at fair 2 N ST (B3 HR B 328 348 i 4 3R R BRI
value through profit or loss TS 7 1) R B B i 2 8,920,576 28,496,329
Net realised gains on disposal of financial i 0 - (EL B MR B3 e i 4 35 B B 1Y
assets at fair value through profit or loss A 0 1) B A B TR M 2k 54,044,330 18,859,574
Management fee rebate income B A 354,157 337,024
sundry income A - 694
63,358,102 47,716,461
Expenses 53 5
Trustee and custodian fees [EEAN AP &l (1,070,805) (907,726)
Administration fee TEEH (79,000) (80,250)
Miscellaneous expenses AHETH B (234) (174)
Unrealised exchange loss o 5 251 I 505 12 (42,524) (21,623)
(1,192,563)  (1,009,773)
Net income for the year AR BRI 62,165,539 46,706,688
Amounts transferred from/(to) statement of B E O AR 248 R 2 i
changes in net assets available for benefits (EEBRE M S
- Scheme A - 60,508,645  (33,853,434)
- Scheme B - wH#z (122,674,184) (12,853,254)

The notes on pages 62 to 71 are an integral part of these financial statements.

BNt ZFE A HH M 5 A B R R A A0

il BOH B Be 2006/2007 11 75 i 4
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AR ST %

THE HONG KONG INSTITUTE OF EDUCATION SUPERANNUATION SCHEME F## & 2 AR 451 #
(All amounts in Hong Kong dollars unless otherwise stated) (BR73 A #BIAF » i s BELL S B 24 B A7)

STATEMENT OF MOVEMENT IN CAPITAL ACCOUNT

P
Year ended 30th June
HEANH =T HIEFE
2007 2006
HKS HKS
bidic piokics
Scheme A wl ]
Opening net assets available for benefits AEAT) AT AR A ] Y (L 214,433,387 182,109,808
Contributions received and receivable Bl B e i Ak
Normal contributions from employer {ig 32 1E ik Ek 1,257,166 12,020,434
Normal contributions from members JE IE # Kk 419,055 4,006,812
Net transfer of forfeitures from Scheme B IEJE RO IR AL FOF REAS 7 (E B SHE ) - 2,204,556
Benefits paid in respect of leavers L AT i Al 2 AR A (3,366,429) (19,761,657)
Amount transferred to/(from) revenue statement A /() igas KM &5 (60,508,645) 33,853,434)
Transfer of fund to Scheme B jEt S E T (152,234,534) -
Closing net assets available for benefits AR ARV AR A 1 v (E - 214,433,387
Scheme B ar#lZ
Opening net assets available for benefits A AT A A A ) 11 8 T 81,734,458 80,359,092
Contributions received and receivable Bl B i Ak
Normal contributions from employer {l& 32 1E &k Ex 15,374,407 5,813,665
Normal contributions form members FE TE K 5,124,803 1,937,888
Net transfer of forfeitures to Scheme A JIEJE S R IR (RO REAS A7 (U B 5t B ) - (2,204,556)
Benefits paid in respect of leavers AT BRI AR 5 AR A (12,508,911)  (17,024,885)
Amount transferred from revenue statement TR i 2 R A S 122,674,184 12,853,254
Transfer of fund from Scheme A i 152,234,534 -
Closing net assets available for benefits AR AR AR A ] Y 364,633,475 81,734,458
Total net assets available for benefits at end of AR KT AR J A R ) Y R AR AR
the year 364,633,475 296,167,845

&

The notes on pages 62 to 71 are an integral part of these financial statements.
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)) THE HONG KONG INSTITUTE OF EDUCATION SUPERANNUATION SCHEME F## & 25 AR 451 #
(All amounts in Hong Kong dollars unless otherwise stated) (BRI A #BIAF » i 4 BELL S B 23 B A7)

CASH FLOW STATEMENT Bl &k

Year ended 30th June
BEANH=THIEFRE

N

2007 2006
HKS HKS
W e
Cash flows from operating activities IR AB SR
Net investment return for the year ZRAE FE I B kg 62,165,539 46,706,688
Adjustments for: PRI -
Net realised gains on financial assts at fair value through — #&/2 F-{E 51 B S 7 38 it 27 2 b 3 (1 B
profit or loss 5 I B S B I A (54,044,330) (18,859,574)
Net unrealised gains on financial assts at fair value 200 TR 5 B B 0 o Wi 4 3% i 2114 B
through profit or loss 5 I AR SR B T U AR (8,920,576)  (28,496,329)
Interest income FlE WA (39,039) (22,840)
Changes in working capital: B EE)
Accounts and other receivables JHRE MU T % A B LAk (196,665) (1,014)
Accounts payable JREASS iR TE 1,197,733 911,030
Net cash generated from operating activities BT E AR B B 162,662 237,961
Cash flows from investing activities WEEBNB &R R
Purchase of financial assts at fair value through profit or A 524 V-8 51 i K 325 8 i 45 3% i 31
loss WO B B (335,508,689)  (62,926,965)
Sale of financial assts at fair value through profit or loss i & /A F(E 51 B B35 18 i 4 35 pE
1 B 5 329,786,682 76,083,231
Interest received BRI 39,039 22,840
Net cash (used in)/generated from investing activities BEEZEHS (BT /B A I B4 A (5,682,968) 13,179,106
Cash flows from financing activities BB S BB &R
Contributions received EAEET 22,175,431 23,778,799
Benefits paid [BERE (15,875,340)  (36,786,542)
Net cash generated from/(used in) financing activities R B EE AL (BT ) B4 VR 6,300,091 (13,007,743)
Net increase in cash and cash equivalents B4 B BB B (0 1 i A 779,785 409,324
Cash and cash equivalents at beginning of the year ARV B B R B E Y 588,027 178,703
Cash and cash equivalents at the end of year AER B B R B EY)
- Cash at banks AT 1,367,812 588,027

The notes on pages 62 to 71 are an integral part of these financial statements.
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THE HONG KONG INSTITUTE OF EDUCATION SUPERANNUATION SCHEME F## & b AR 4513
(All amounts in Hong Kong dollars unless otherwise stated) (BR73 A #BIAF » i s BELL S B 24 B A7)

NOTES ON THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS BA %5 $i 3% fit 5%

Description of the Scheme
General

The operation of the Scheme is governed by the Trust Deed
dated 19th October 1995. The Scheme was registered
under section 18 of the Hong Kong Occupational Retirement
Schemes Ordinance (“ORSQ”) on 12th December 1995.

Prior to the winding up of a sub-scheme, Scheme A, on 11th
August 2006, the Scheme was divided into two sub-schemes:
Scheme A and Scheme B. Scheme A was a hybrid scheme
which had both the features of a defined contribution scheme
and a defined benefit scheme. A factor called the Scheme
A Benefit Factor (which was determined by the Actuary
from time to time) was used in calculating the benefits of
Scheme A members. The Trustee, in consultation with the
Actuary of the Scheme considered that, by application of
the Scheme A Benefit Factor as defined under the Trust
Deed, the Scheme would always remain solvent. Scheme
B is a defined contribution scheme. Members of both sub-
schemes contributed 5% of their basic monthly salary to the
Scheme and benefits are paid to them on their retirement
or on leaving employment subject to certain conditions as
stipulated in the Trust Deed.

With the implementation of the Mandatory Provident Fund
(“MPF") Schemes Ordinance on 1st December 2000 in Hong
Kong, The Hong Kong Institute of Education (“the Institute”)
also participates in a master trust MPF scheme operated by
an independent service provider (“the MPF Scheme”). As the
Scheme is an MPF-exempted recognised ORSO scheme, all
the employees who joined the Institute before 1st December
2000 on superannuable terms were given the option to elect
between the Scheme and MPF Scheme.

On 11th August 2006, Scheme A was wound up and all its

members transferred their account balances to Scheme B.

The financial statements have been approved for issue by the
Trustee on 5th December 2007.

The Hong Kong Institute of Education Financial Report 2006 /2007
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2.1

summary of principal accounting policies

The principal accounting policies applied in the preparation of
these financial statements are set out below. These policies
have been consistently applied to all the years presented,
unless otherwise stated.

Basis of preparation

The financial statements of the Scheme have been prepared
under the historical cost convention as modified by the
revaluation of financial assets at fair value through profit or
loss and in accordance with Hong Kong Financial Reporting
Standards (“HKFRS”), which collectively includes all applicable
individual HKFRS, Hong Kong Accounting Standards (“HKAS”)
and Interpretations issued by the Hong Kong Institute of
Certified Public Accountants, and the accounting principles
generally accepted in Hong Kong and the requirements of the
Hong Kong Occupational Retirement Schemes.

The preparation of financial statements in conformity with
HKFRS requires the use of certain critical accounting estimates.
It also requires management to exercise its judgement in
the process of applying the Scheme’s accounting policies.
There is no area involving a higher degree of judgement or
complexity, or areas where assumptions and estimates are
significant to the financial statements.

Standard and amendment to an existing standard that are

relevant but not yet effective and have not been early
adopted by the Scheme

The following standard and amendment have been published
that are mandatory for the Scheme’s accounting periods
commencing from 1st July 2007 but which the Scheme has
not early adopted:

e HKFRS 7, Financial Instruments: Disclosures, and the
complementary Amendment to HKAS 1, Presentation of
Financial Statements - Capital Disclosures.

2.

2.1
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2.1

2.2

THE HONG KONG INSTITUTE OF EDUCATION SUPERANNUATION SCHEME F## & 25 AR 451 #
(All amounts in Hong Kong dollars unless otherwise stated) (BR73 A #BIAF » i s BELL S B 24 B A7)

NOTES ON THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS B % i3 Mt 3%

summary of principal accounting policies
(Continued)

Basis of preparation (Continued)

HKFRS 7 introduces new disclosures to improve the
information about financial instruments. It requires the
disclosure of qualitative and quantitative information about
exposure to risks arising from financial instruments, including
specified minimum disclosures about credit risk, liquidity
risk and market risk, including sensitivity analysis to market
risk. The amendment to HKAS 1 introduces disclosures
about the level of an entity’s capital and how it manages
capital. The Scheme has assessed the impact of HKFRS 7
and the amendment to HKAS 1 and concluded that there is
no significant impact on the financial statements other than
certain additional disclosures.

Foreign currency translation
(a) Functional and presentation currency

Iltems included in the financial statements of the
Scheme are measured using the currency of the primary
economic environment in which the Scheme operates
(“the functional currency”). The financial statements are
presented in Hong Kong dollars, which is the Scheme’s
functional and presentation currency.

(b) Transactions and balances

Foreign currency transactions are translated into the
presentation currency u sing the exchange rates
prevailing at the dates of the transactions. Foreign
exchange gains and losses resulting from the settlement
of such transactions and from the translation at year-
end exchange rates of monetary assets and liabilities
denominated in foreign currencies are recognised in the
revenue statement.

Translation differences on non-monetary financial assets
at fair value through profit or loss are reported as part of
the fair value gain or loss.

The Hong Kong Institute of Education Financial Report 2006 /2007
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24

summary of principal accounting policies
(Continued)

Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss

The Scheme classified its investments in unit trusts as
financial assets at fair value through profit or loss.

Purchases and sales of investments are recognised on trade-
date, the date on which the Scheme commits to purchase
or sell the asset. Financial assets carried at fair value
through profit or loss are initially recognised at fair value and
transaction costs are expensed in the revenue statement.
Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss are
subsequently carried at fair value. Changes in the fair value
are included in the revenue statement in the period in which
they arise. Investments are derecognised when the rights to
receive cash flows from the investments have been expired
or have been transferred and the Scheme has transferred

substantially all risks and rewards of ownership.

Investments that are listed or traded on an exchange are fair
valued based on quoted bid prices. Investments in unit trusts
are stated at fair value which represents the closing bid prices
quoted by the investment managers as at the year end date.

Accounts and other receivables

Accounts and other receivables are recognised initially at fair
value and subsequently measured at amortised cost using
the effective interest method, less provision for impairment.
A provision for impairment of accounts and other receivables is
established when there is objective evidence that the Scheme
will not be able to collect all amounts due according to the
original terms of receivables. The amount of the provision
is the difference between the asset’s carrying amount and
the present value of estimated future cash flows, discounted
at the effective interest rate unless the discounting effect is
insignificant. The amount of the provision is recognised in the
revenue statement.

2.
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2.5

2.6

2.7

2.8

2.9

summary of principal accounting policies
(Continued)

Cash and cash equivalents

Cash and cash equivalents include cash in hand, deposits
held at call with banks and other short-term highly liquid
investments with original maturities of three months or less.

Accounts payable

Accounts payable are recognised initially at fair value and
subsequently measured at amortised cost using the effective
interest method unless the discounting effect is insignificant.

Income recognition

Net gains and losses arising from changes in the fair value on
financial assets at fair value through profit or loss are dealt
with through the revenue statement in the year in which
they arise.

Interest income on deposit is recognised on a time proportion
basis using the effective interest method.

Management fee rebate income is recognised when the right
to receive income is established.

Sundry income is recognised on an accruals basis.
Contributions

Contributions are accounted for on an accruals basis.
Benefits

Benefits paid and payable represent all benefit claims
determined by the Trustee to be valid in respect of the
Scheme during the year in respect of members who have left
the Scheme and are accounted for on an accruals basis. No
provision is made in the financial statements for benefits that
will become payable to existing members of the Scheme in
the future.
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NOTES ON THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS B % i3 Mt 5%
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2.10

summary of principal accounting policies
(Continued)

Obligations to pay retirement benefits in the future

Details of the Scheme’s obligations to pay retirement benefits
in the future are set out in note 8. No provision is made in
the financial statements for this liability except to the extent
indicated in note 2.7. The terms “aggregate vested liability”
and “aggregate past service liability”, as used in note 8, have

the same meaning as defined in section 2(1) of the ORSO.

They may be broadly defined as follows:

(0]

(i)

For Scheme A

Vested liabilities relate primarily to those benefits
that would be payable if an employee had voluntarily
resigned and thereby ceased to be so employed on the
date of valuation.

Past service liabilities are the present value as at the
valuation date of the estimated benefit members could
expect to receive in the future taking into account
factors such as service already completed, possible staff
turnover, possible future salary increases, etc.

For Scheme B

Vested liabilities relate primarily to those benefits
that would be payable if an employee had voluntarily
resigned and thereby ceased to be employed on the
date of valuation.

Past service liabilities represent the aggregate of
contributions paid and payable by the employer and the
members, together with any declared investment return
on those contributions on the date of valuation.

For the full definition of these terms, reference should
be made to the ORSO.
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2.11

(@)

(b)

()

C))

THE HONG KONG INSTITUTE OF EDUCATION SUPERANNUATION SCHEME F## & 2 AR 451 #
(All amounts in Hong Kong dollars unless otherwise stated) (BR73 A #BIAF » i s BELL S B 24 B A7)

NOTES ON THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS B % 3% Mt %

summary of principal accounting policies
(Continued)

Transfer values

Transfer values are accounted for on the actual date
of transfer.

Financial risk management

The Scheme’s activities expose it to the following financial
risks:

Price risk

The constituent funds of the Scheme are subject to price
fluctuations and the risk factors inherent in the underlying
investments. Consequently, the investment returns of the
constituent funds may increase or decrease subject to the
relevant price fluctuations and risk factor changes.

Interest rate risk

The majority of the Scheme’s financial assets and liabilities are
non-interest bearing; as a result, the Scheme is not subject
to significant amounts of risk relating to fluctuations in the
prevailing levels of market interest rates.

Liquidity risk

The Scheme is exposed to unexpected withdrawal of cash
benefits. However, it manages the risk by investing the
majority of its assets in investments that are readily liquidated
and realised.

Currency risk

The Scheme has minimal exposure to foreign currency
exchange rate risk as the constituent funds of Scheme are
mainly denominated in United States dollars and Hong Kong
dollars which are linked between each other under a Linked
Exchange Rate System.
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4. Financial assets at fair value through profit 4. 2 {5 W &% W B s ¥
or loss PH I S B
P
2007 2006
HK$ HKS
b Hiidics
Units in: BAE -
Allianz Choice Fund: TR S .
- RCM Balanced Fund - Wfirkk4g
(Ordinary Class A) (EEHEAIA) 104,062,413 107,340,018
- RCM Capital Stable Fund - BEGARS
(ordinary Class A) (98 A A) 10,059,507 6,563,345
- RCM Growth Fund - HRAER
(Ordinary Class A) (LA EAIA) 48,862,355 10,079,115
- RCM Stable Growth Fund = ?%%i‘*’ﬁﬁﬁ
(Ordinary Class A) (58 B A) 22,762,174 14,447,831
- RCM HKS Liquidity Fund - WICIE A
(Ordinary Class) (-5 07 ) 16,643,223 5,830,310
- RCM Absolute Return Fund A I s i
(Ordinary Class A) (-5 B A) 1,713,467 302,947
Fidelity Advantage Portfolio Fund: Ordinary Unit: &EEMBEA SRS  FEEHA -
- Balanced Fund - Byt 85,258,650 102,812,688
- Capital Stable Fund - EARRERS 9,819,510 4,911,223
- Growth Fund - WRES 39,100,552 17,875,135
- Stable Growth Fund - PREHRERES 10,407,581 6,860,717
- US Dollar Money Fund - ELEWES 16,610,894 19,590,084
365,300,326 296,613,413

N

5.

Administration expenses

During the year, certain expenses, including audit fee and
actuarial fee, of the Scheme were borne by the Hong Kong
Institute of Education, which will continue to pay for these
expenses until the number of Scheme’s members reaches 500.

The auditor’s remuneration of HK$49,000 (2006: HK$48,000)
for the year have been absorbed by the employer, The Hong
Kong Institute of Education.

Tax status of the Scheme

The Scheme is registered under the ORSO Ordinance, and
is therefore a recognised scheme for Hong Kong profits tax
purposes. The policy of the Inland Revenue Department
(“IRD"), as set out in IRD Practice Note No 23, is that
“recognised retirement schemes and their trustees are not
considered to be subject to profits tax on their investment
Accordingly, no provision for Hong Kong profits tax
has been made in the Scheme’s financial statements.

income”.
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THE HONG KONG INSTITUTE OF EDUCATION SUPERANNUATION SCHEME F## & 25 AR 451 #
(All amounts in Hong Kong dollars unless otherwise stated) (BR73 A #EBIAF » i s LS B 24 B A7)

NOTES ON THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS B % $i3 Mt 5%

Forfeitures

The Superannuation and MPF Schemes Management
Committee has resolved to adopt the Actuary’s
recommendation that the forfeited benefits from both
Scheme A and Scheme B members leaving the Scheme prior
to reaching full vesting be allocated to Scheme A reserve.
Upon the Scheme A winding up on 11th August 2006, all the
benefits remaining in Scheme A are transferred to Scheme B.

The reserve may by used to pay the Scheme expense and
be reallocated amongst the members of the Scheme at the
direction of the Trustee.

Actuarial valuation and accumulated scheme
benefits

(i) For Scheme A

The aggregate past service liability was last determined
by the Actuary of the Scheme, Towers Perrin Forster &
Crosby Inc. (the “Actuary”), at 30th June 2004 per its
report dated 29th December 2004 as being HK$119.1
million. The main assumptions used by the Actuary in
determining the accumulated Scheme benefits were
investment returns of 5.0% per annum after the date of
actuarial review, and salary inflation of 4.0% per annum
after the date of actuarial review. The assumptions as
described above give rise to a figure which may not
be directly comparable with the valuation of net assets
as shown on page 4 of the financial statements which
have been presented in accordance with HKFRS.

The aggregate vested liability last calculated at 30th
June 2004 by the Actuary was HKS$113.6 million.

(ii) For Scheme B

The aggregate past service liability and aggregate vested

liability last determined by the Actuary at 30th June 2004
was HKS66.6 million and HKS59.2 million respectively.
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9. Related party transactions 9. HBIRY
Parties are considered to be related if one party has the ability HHP—FHRe RS —7 o 3FE
to control the other party or exercise significant influence over Ve H B 75 B 45 1 e SR R 38 Y — T B
the other party in making financial or operational decisions. TRES » QIS5 RS -
Other than those disclosed in note 5 to the financial B T W B R B GRS BT B R A > AE IR
statements, during the year, the following significant BB AT E RS NE -
transactions are carried out with related parties:
(@) Transactions with the Investment Managers () HEERHETHZRS
The financial assets in the Scheme are managed by AREFINHEEEH S EREEH
Fidelity Investments Management (H.K.) Ltd and Allianz (FW) A BR 7 M i R 22 B i e i 1
Global Investors Hong Kong Limited (the “Investment WA PR w) ([ B AR ) Jrig 2 o
Managers”). The Investment Managers provide investment P 48 2 ) A G 1L A E A EE R
management services to the Scheme and receive in return of W o B R 2
management fees.
The Scheme also received management fee rebate from the AT B TR 5 SRR B IR
Investment Managers of HK$354,157 for the year (2006: B 1354, 157# 0 ( —FT N
HK$337,024). 337,024%70) °
(b) Transactions with the Trustee and its fellow subsidiary () HfEsEAREFEZMBA RIS
The Scheme engages HSBC Institution Trust Services (Asia) A M R MM A SER TS (HE )
Limited (the “Trustee”) to provide administrative and BHIRA R (TFFEA L Rl A g4t
custodian services for a fee. TTBUR A AR -
The Scheme also has the following transaction and balance N E DI EHYNER AR EY 115N
with a fellow subsidiary of the Trustee: AIETT N AIZE G AN R
-
2007 2006
HK$ HKS
W ki
Bank interest income received W HERAT ALE YA 39,039 22,840
Cash and deposits held at year end ARE B4 B A7 K 1,367,812 588,027
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COMPLIANCE REPORT BY THE AUDITORS TO THE TRUSTEE OF THE HONG KONG INSTITUTE OF EDUCATION

SUPERANNUATION SCHEME (THE “SCHEME”)
MM B B O B e A BTt 8 (AT D R REA

We have audited the financial statements of the Scheme for the
year ended 30th June 2007 in accordance with Hong Kong Standards
on Auditing and with reference to Practice Note 860.1 “The audit of
retirement schemes” issued by the Hong Kong Institute of Certified
Public Accountants (“HKICPA”), and have issued an unqualified
auditor’s report thereon dated 5th December 2007.

Pursuant to section 20 of the Hong Kong Occupational Retirement
Schemes Ordinance ("ORSQ”), we are required to report whether
the Scheme complied with certain requirements of the ORSO.

Respective responsibilities of the trustee and auditor

The ORSO requires the trustee to ensure that:

a proper accounts and records are kept as regards all assets,
liabilities and financial transactions of the Scheme;

b the relevant undertaking, as defined under section 20(4) of
the ORSO in respect of Scheme A is complied with;

C contributions are made in accordance with the terms of the
Scheme;
d the assets of the Scheme are not subject to any assignment,

charge, pledge or other encumbrance except for those
specified in section 20(3)(b)(iii) of the ORSO; and

e the requirements of section 27(2) of the ORSO are complied
with.

It is our responsibility to report on the Scheme’s compliance with
the above requirements based on the results of the procedures
performed by us.

Basis of conclusion

We conducted our engagement in accordance with Hong Kong
Standard on Assurance Engagements 3000 “Assurance Engagements
Other Than Audits or Reviews of Historical Financial Information”
and with reference to Practice Note 860.1 “The audit or retirement
schemes” issued by the HKICPA. We have performed such
procedures as we considered necessary for the purpose of reporting
on the Scheme’s compliance with the above requirements.
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Conclusion

Based on the foregoing, in our opinion:

proper accounts and records have been kept during the year
ended 30th June 2007 as regards all assets, liabilities and
financial transactions of the Scheme;

the relevant undertaking, as defined under section 20(4) of
the ORSO, in respect of Scheme A has been complied with
during the year ended 30th June 2007;

contributions have been made in accordance with the terms
of the Scheme during the year ended 30th June 2007 and at
30th June 2007 there was no shortfall in respect of Scheme
B between the Scheme B’s assets and the Scheme B’s
aggregate vested liability;

at 30th June 2007 the assets of the Scheme were not subject
to any assignment, charge, pledge or other encumbrance
except for those specified in section 20(3)(b)(iii) of the ORSO;
and

at 30th June 2007, 31st January 2007 and 31st August 2006
the requirements of section 27(2) of the ORSO have been
complied with.

PricewaterhouseCoopers
Certified Public Accountants
Hong Kong, 5th December 2007
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